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advisory services in the areas of Capital Markets, Corporate Restructuring,
Valuations and other Merchant Banking Services. Our directors are having
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working in Main Board IPOs, SME IPOs, FPOs, valuation of companies for
various transactions, migration to main board, takeovers, buy back and
business advisory. In this segment, we are primarily focused on providing
Merchant Banking services to Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs).
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capital markets which include Merchant Banking Services, and Corporate
Advisory Services under one roof that and well diversified for financial and
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Valuations and other Merchant Banking Services. Our directors are having
more than 2 decades of experience in the capital markets. We are actively
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various transactions, migration to main board, takeovers, buy back and
business advisory. In this segment, we are primarily focused on providing
Merchant Banking services to Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs).
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Our Management
Mr. Mayur Parikh
Executive Director
Mayur Parikh brings over three decades of extensive experience in public
offerings, serving as an advisor for various companies, as a director of a
merchant banking firm, and as a consultant to multiple merchant banking
entities. He has successfully managed public issues for more than 40 companies,
including those on the Main Board and SME IPOsacross both stock exchanges.
Additionally, he has played a significant role in processes such as amalgamations,
demergers, takeovers, and valuations.

He is a fellow memberof the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Mr. Pradip Sandhir
Managing Director & CFO
Mr. Pradip Sandhir was_ Chiefly
responsible for stabilizing Master
Trust Ltd, that has been operationalin
the Gujarat region since last 8 years,
Mr. Sandhir brings 15 years of
experience to the table in the Financial
Market. He had handled SME IPO and
Market Making of more than 30
companies. He has a rich experience in
Stock Broking, Market Making, Fund
raising and_ investor relationship
activities.ay
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 

INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED  

CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023393 

 

Board of Directors 

 

Name Designation 

Mr. Pradip Sandhir Managing Director  

Mr. Mayur Parikh* Executive Director 

Ms. Rutu Sanghvi Non- Executive Independent Director 

Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Non- Executive Independent Director 

Mr. Monil Shah** Non- Executive Independent Director 

 

*The Designation of Mr. Mayur Parikh has been changed from Non-Executive Director to Executive Director 

of the Company with effect from May 29, 2024. 

 

**Mr. Monil Shah was appointed as an Independent Director on August 29, 2024.  

 

Key Managerial Personnel 

 

Mr. Pradip Sandhir Chief Financial Officer  

Ms. Jaini Jain Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Ms. Pooja Shah* Appointed as per SEBI (Merchant Banker) 

Regulations, 1992 Mr. Ayush Sharma** 

*Ms. Pooja Shah was appointed as KMP of Merchant Banking Division from November 01, 2024. 

**Mr. Ayush Sharma was appointed as KMP of Merchant Banking Division from November 14, 2024. 

 

Statutory Auditor Secretarial Auditor 

M/s. B.T.Vora & CO.,  

Chartered Accountants (FRN: 123652W) 

Address: 310, Interstellar, Nr. PRL Colony, Off 

Sindhu Bhavan Road, Thaltej, Ahmedabad – 380 059 

Tel No.: +91-9327014688 

E-mail: btvora@hotmail.com  

M/s Insiya Nalawala & Associates 

Company Secretaries (COP No. 22786) 

Address: A/84, Pariseema Complex, Opposite 

Tanishq, C G Road, Ahmedabad – 380 009,  

Tel No.: +91-9724509467 

E-mail id: insiya@csinsiya.in   

 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent Bankers to the company 

Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited 

106 & 107 Dattani Plaza,Kurla Andheri Road, 

Kurla (w), Nr Safed Poll East West Ind Estate, 

Mumbai – 400072, Mumbai, India  

Tel No. 022-28520461/ 022-28520462 

Email: service@satellitecorporate.com 

ICICI Bank Limited 

 

 

HDFC Bank Limited 

Shapath IV Branch, Ahmedabad  

 

Registered Office 

Office No. 508, Fifth Floor, Priviera, Nehru Nagar, Manekbag, Ahmedabad – 380 015, Gujarat, India 

Tel No.: +91 9898055647 

Email: compliance@ifinservices.in; Website: www.ifinservices.in; 

 



 
 

 

 

Annual Report 2024-2025 

-2025 

 

COMMITTEES OF THE COMPANY 

 

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE COMPOSITION 

 

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship 

Ms. Rutu Sanghvi Chairman Independent Director 

Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Member Independent Director 

Mr. Mayur Parikh Member Executive Director 

Mr. Monil Shah Member Independent Director 

 

 

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE COMPOSITION 
 

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship 

Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Chairman Independent Director 

Ms. Rutu Sanghvi Member Independent Director 

Mr. Monil Shah Member Independent Director 

 

 

3. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE COMPOSITION 

 

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship 

Ms. Rutu Sanghvi Chairman Independent Director 

Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Member Independent Director 

Mr. Pradip Sandhir Member Managing Director 

 

*The composition of Board of Directors of the company, committee and KMP of the company are shown as on the date 

of this report. For the details of changes in board structure and committee structure please refer board report which 

forms part of this report.
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NOTICE OF 31ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 31st (Thirty First) Annual General Meeting of the members of Interactive 

Financial Services Limited (CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023393) will be held on Friday, September 12, 2025 at 

01:00 P.M. IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the 

following businesses: 

 

Ordinary Business: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial 

Year ended March 31, 2025 and the Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Pradip Sandhir (DIN: 06944544), who retires by rotation and, 

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

Special Business: 

    

3. To increase in threshold of loans/ guarantees, providing of securities and making of investments in 

securities under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013  

 

To consider and if, thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following resolution as 

Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and any 

other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Meeting of Board and its 

Powers) Rules, 2014 ((including any statutory modification(s), clarification(s), substitution(s) or re-

enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and in supersession of all the earlier resolutions passed 

in this regard, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 

Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall include any 

Committee constituted by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the Board to exercise its powers, 

including the powers conferred by this Resolution) to (a) give any loan to any person or other body 

corporate in one or more tranches including loan represented by way of book debt (the "Loan"); (b) 

give any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person; 

and (c) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body 

corporate from time to time in one or more tranches as the Board of Directors as in their absolute 

discretion deem beneficial and in the interest of the Company, for an amount not exceeding Rs. 50 

Crores (Rupees Fifty Crores Only), notwithstanding that such investments, outstanding loans given or 

to be given and guarantees and/or security provided may collectively exceed the limits prescribed 

under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of 

Directors and Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized to take from time to 

time all decisions and such steps as may be necessary for giving loans, guarantees or providing 

securities or for making such investments and to execute such documents, deeds, writings, papers 

and/or agreements as may be required and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may in its 

absolute discretion, deem fit; necessary or appropriate.” 
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NOTES: 

 

1. Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs (MCA) and circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ 

P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) and other applicable circulars and 

notifications issued (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being 

in force and as amended from time to time, companies are allowed to hold AGM through Video 

Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM), without the physical presence of members 

at a common venue. In compliance with the said Circulars, AGM shall be conducted through VC / 

OAVM. 

 

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 

the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. 

However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the AGM 

through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 

time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The 

facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on 

first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or 

more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 

Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 

account of first come first served basis. 

 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 

purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars 

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 

the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be 

transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National 

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 

authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as 

venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

 

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the 

Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.ifinservices.in. 

The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at 

www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for 

providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

7. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular issued from time to time.  
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8. The explanatory statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 

2013, relating to special business under Item No. 3 to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto 

and forms part of the notice.  

 

The relevant details as required under regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meeting issued by the Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India, of the Person seeking appointment as Director under Item No. 2 of 

the Notice are also annexed. 

 

9. In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

and the Board of Directors of the Company commend the appointment/re-appointment of the directors 

mentioned in this notice. 

 

10. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the company will remain close from September 

01, 2025 to September 12, 2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of 31st AGM. 

 

11. Electronic copy of the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent to those Members whose e-mail address 

is registered with the Company/Depositories for communication purpose, unless any Member has 

requested for a physical copy of the same. Members may note that this Annual Report will also be 

available on the Company’s website at www.ifinservices.in. 

 

12. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statement are open for 

inspection by the members in electronic mode by requesting through email to the company secretary 

at compliance@ifinservices.in. 

 

13. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice. 

 

14. The speaker shareholders are required to register themselves with the company by writing e-mail to 

the company secretary at compliance@ifinservices.in on or before September 05, 2025. The speaker 

shareholder should note that the questions at the Annual General Meeting are limit to two questions 

only due to continuing the further proceeding of the AGM. For any further questions/queries the 

shareholder can write to the company at compliance@ifinservices.in. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL 

MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, September 09, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 

Thursday, September 11, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL 

for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial 

Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Saturday, September 06, 2025, may cast their vote 

electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up 

equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Saturday, September 06, 2025. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
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A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 

maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 

number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat 

mode with NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click 

on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You 

will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., 

Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered 

email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful 

authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 

you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you 

to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful 

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value 

added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 

and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-

Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 

IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected 

to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
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Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

  

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 

voting experience. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach 

e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi 

/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 

click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing 

my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-

Voting option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as 

per the information provided by company. On clicking the e-voting 

option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 

provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there 

is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 

Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ 

website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 

at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System 

Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-

Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly 

access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 
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Individual 

Shareholders (holding 

securities in demat 

mode) login through 

their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 

logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you 

will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 

wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 

and Forget Password option available at above-mentioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related 

to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  

evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 

no. 1800-21-09911 

 

 

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 

under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 

Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
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using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 

electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 

and Client ID is 12****** then your user 

ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 

Number registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** 

and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 

101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 

and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 

need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 

NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. 

Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 

account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 

physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 

those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  
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6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name 

and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-

Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 

box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on 

“VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 

shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 

copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen 

signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail 

to insiya@csinsiya.in with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other 

than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / 
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Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-

Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 

keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful 

attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 

Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com 

to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-

voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or 

call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Mr. Sachin Kaleriya at evoting@nsdl.com  

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring 

user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 

AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to compliance@ifinservices.in. 

 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 

digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self 

attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 

compliance@ifinservices.in. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, 

you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting 

and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id 

and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 

their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 

required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to 

access e-Voting facility. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS 

UNDER:- 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 

remote e-voting. 

 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 

have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred 

from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they 

will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
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4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-

Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS 

UNDER: 

 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-

Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-

Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” 

menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting 

menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of 

Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password 

for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the 

remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

  

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 

 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting 

via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. 

It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid 

glitches. 

 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 

advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

compliance@ifinservices.in. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 

Other Instructions: 

 

1) Ms. Insiya Nalawala, Practicing Company Secretary, Proprietor of M/s. Insiya Nalawala & Associates, 

Company Secretaries (Membership No. FCS 13422), has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize 

the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.  

 

2) The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the annual general meeting, first 

count the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote-e-voting in the 

presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make, not later than Two 

working days from the conclusion of the meeting a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes 

cast in favor or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman or any of the Director or Company Secretary 

of the Company. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the 

Company’s website www.ifinservices.in, website of Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at 

www.bseindia.com, and on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com, within forty eight hours of 

the passing of the resolutions at the 31st AGM of the Company to be held on Friday, September 12, 

2025 and communicated to BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
(Pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act 2013 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings) 

 

Item No. 3 

 

To increase in threshold of loans/ guarantees, providing of securities and making of investments in 

securities under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

In order to make optimum use of funds available with the Company and also to achieve long term strategic 

and business objectives, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes to make use of the same by making 

investment in other bodies corporate or granting loans, giving guarantee or providing security to other persons 

or other bodies corporate as and when required.  

 

Members may note that pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Company can give 

loan or give any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person 

and acquire securities of any other body corporate, in excess of 60% of its paid up share capital, free reserves 

and securities premium account or 100% of its free reserves and securities premium account, whichever is 

more, with the approval of Members by special resolution passed at the general meeting. In view of the 

aforesaid, it is proposed to take approval under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, by way of special 

resolution, up to a limit of Rs. 50 Crores, as proposed in the Notice.  

 

The above proposal is in the interest of the Company and the Board recommends the Resolution as set out at 

Item No. 3 for approval by the members of the Company as Special Resolution 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or any of their relatives, are any way, 

concerned or interested in the above proposed resolution, except to the extent of their equity holding and 

Directorships in the Company, if any. 

 

 

By order of Board of Directors, 

For, Interactive Financial Services Limited 

 

 

 

Date: August 13, 2025   

Place: Ahmedabad 

  Jaini Jain 

Company Secretary  

and Compliance Officer 

 

Registered Office 

Office No. 508, Fifth Floor,  

Priviera Nehru Nagar, 

Ahmedabad – 380 015, Gujarat, India. 

Corporate Identification Number: L65910GJ1994PLC023393 

Website: www.ifinservices.in   

Email id: compliance@ifinservices.in  
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ANNEXURE TO ITEM NO. 2 OF THE NOTICE 

 

Information as required under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meeting issued by the institute of Company Secretaries 

of India with respect to the Appointment / Re-appointment of Directors at the Annual General Meeting is as 

under: 

 

Name of the Director Mr. Pradip Sandhir 

Director Identification Number 

 

06946411 

Date of Birth and Age 

 

13-12-1968, 56 Years 

Date of joining the Board 

 

04-09-2021 

Qualification 

 

Bachelor of Commerce 

Nature of expertise in specific functional areas 

 

Stock Broking, Finance and Management 

No. of Shares held in the Company 

 

9,71,000 

Directorship in listed and other companies 

(Other than Interactive Financial Services Limited) 

 

1. Aanya Distributors and Chemicals 

Private Limited. 

2. Beeline Broking Limited. 

3. Beeline Commodities Private Limited. 

Committee Memberships/ 

Chairmanship held in Listed Companies and other Companies 

(Other than Interactive Financial Services Limited) 

 

NIL 

 

Disclosure of relationships between Directors inter-se No relationship 

Terms and conditions of appointment or re-appointment along 

with details of remuneration 

He is appointed as Managing Director for the 

period of Five Year w.e.f. August 30, 2022 

with Remuneration of Rs. 18 Lakhs per 

annum. In this AGM he is liable to retire by 

rotation and being eligible offer himself for re-

appointment. 

 

For other details such as the number of meetings of the board attended during the year, remuneration drawn 

and relationship with other directors and key managerial personnel in respect of above director, please refer 

to the Board Report which is a part of this Annual Report. 
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BOARD’S REPORT 

 

To, 

The Members, 

 

The Directors are pleased to present the 31st Board Report of Interactive Financial Services Limited (“the 

Company”) together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS 

 

The financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2025 is summarized below: 

 

        (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

Revenue from Operations 740.81 306.65 

Other Income 110.32 41.03 

Total Income 851.13 347.68 

 

Profit before Depreciation, Finance Costs, Exceptional Items and 

Tax Expense 

407.47 158.89 

Less: Depreciation/ Amortization/ Impairment 1.83 0.63 

Profit before Finance Costs, Exceptional Items and Tax Expense  405.64 158.26 

Less: Financial Costs 12.30 1.51 

Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax Expense 393.34 156.75 

Add/(less): Exceptional items 0 0 

Profit before Tax Expense 393.34 156.75 

Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 108.00 95.81 

Profit for the year (1) 285.35 60.94 

Other Comprehensive Income/loss (2) 109.74 305.54 

Total (1+2) 395.09 366.48 

Earning per equity share (for continuing operation) 6.77 1.66 

 

STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

 

Revenue from operations Increased to Rs. 740.81 Lakhs as against Rs. 306.65 Lakhs in the previous year 

showing a Growth of Rs 434.16 Lakhs. The other income in the current year stands Rs. 110.32 Lakhs as 

against Rs. 41.03 Lakhs in the previous year. 

 

The Profit before Tax for the current year is Rs. 393.34 Lakhs as against Rs. 156.75 Lakhs in the previous 

year showing a Growth of Rs. 236.59 Lakhs.  

 

The Profit after Tax (PAT) for the current year is Rs. 285.35 Lakhs as against the profit of Rs. 60.94 Lakhs in 

the previous year showing a growth of Rs. 224.41 Lakhs. 
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 

THE COMPANY 

 

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, which have 

occurred between the end of the financial year 2024-25 and the date of this Report expect the changes provided 

in this report. 

 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

 

The Board of Directors of your company, has decided not to transfer any amount to the Reserves for the year 

under review. 

 

DIVIDEND 

 

The Board of Directors of your company, after considering holistically the relevant circumstances and keeping 

in view the company policy, has decided that it would be prudent, not to recommend any Dividend for the 

year under review. 

 

THE CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS. 
 

There has been no change in the nature of the Business during the year under review. 

 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 

 

Our Company is engaged in the business of Investment Banking and Financial activities. For the Investment 

banking activity, Our Company is registered with SEBI having Registration No. INM000012856 dated 

September 27, 2021 as Category-I Merchant Banker. We provide services in various areas of capital markets 

which include Merchant Banking Services, and Corporate Advisory Services under one roof that and well 

diversified for financial and advisory services in the areas of Capital Markets, Corporate Restructuring, 

Valuations and other Merchant Banking Services. Our directors are having more than 2 decades of experience 

in the capital markets. We are actively working in Main Board IPOs, SME IPOs, FPOs, valuation of companies 

for various transactions, migration to main board, takeovers, buy back and business advisory. In this segment, 

we are primarily focused on providing Merchant Banking services to Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs). 

 

For further details with respect to overview of the industry and important changes in the industry during the 

last year, external environment and economic outlook please refer Management Discussion and Analysis 

Report which forms part of this Annual Report. 

 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

 

Authorized Capital 

 

The authorized share capital of the company is Rs 8,00,00,000/- divided into 80,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 

10/- each. 

 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital 

 

As on date of this report the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of your Company stood at Rs. 

6,93,01,300 comprising 69,30,130 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. 
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The paid-up Capital of the company increased from 30,13,100 Equity Shares to 69,30,130 pursuant to Right 

Issue of 39,17,030 Equity Shares. 

 

Right Issue 

 

During the period under review the company had come up with Right Issue of 39,17,030 fully paid-up equity 

shares of face value of Rs. 10 at a price of Rs. 30 per rights equity share including a premium of Rs. 20 per 

Right Equity share aggregating to Rs. 11.75 crore. The Allotment of Equity Shares were made on February 

10, 2025.  

 

As on March 31, 2025 the company had used Rs. 870.68 Lakhs from proceeds of Right Issue and there are no 

deviation or variation in use of the proceeds from the objects stated in the Letter of offer of Right Issue dated 

January 13, 2025. 

 

CREDIT RATING 

 

During the period under review the company was not required to take credit rating. 

 

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)  

 

During the period under review, the provisions relating to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) is 

not applicable to the company. 

 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

The composition of the Board of Directors and KMP’s of the Company as on March 31, 2025 is as follows: 

 

Sr. No. Name of the Director  Category 

1. Mr. Pradip Sandhir Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer 

2. Mr. Mayur Parikh Executive Director  

3. Ms. Rutu Sanghvi Non- Executive Independent Director 

4. Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Non- Executive Independent Director 

5. Mr. Monil Shah Non- Executive Independent Director 

6. Ms. Jaini Jain Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

 

Retirement by rotation and subsequent re-appointment: 

 

Mr. Pradip Sandhir  (DIN:  06946411), Managing Director, is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting, pursuant to Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, 

read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and being eligible have offered himself 

for re-appointment. 

 

Appropriate business for his re-appointment is being placed for the approval of the shareholders of the 

Company at the ensuing AGM. The brief resume of the Director and other related information has been 

detailed in the Notice convening the ensuing AGM of the Company. 
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In terms of Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, brief resume in respect of the Director who 

is retiring by rotation and proposed to be re-appointed, is provided in the Notice convening the 31st AGM of 

the Company. 

 

CHANGE IN BOARD COMPOSITION 

 

1. The Board of Directors of the Company, on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, have approved the change in designation of Mr. Mayur Parikh (DIN: 00005646) from 

Non-Executive Director to Executive Director, of the company, w.e.f. May 29, 2024. 

 

2. The Board of Directors of the company, based on the recommendation of Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee have appointed Mr. Monil Shah (DIN: 10734738) as Independent Director, 

and approval of shareholders of the company was received in the 30th Annual General Meeting w.e.f. 

August 29, 2024. 

 

Changes in Board Composition after end of financial Year. 

 

There is No changes in board composition after end of financial year 2024-25. 

 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

The Company has received declarations from Mr. Raghav Jobanputra (DIN: 10066298), Ms. Rutu Sanghavi 

(DIN: 09494473) and Mr. Monil Shah (DIN: 10734738), Independent Directors of the Company under Section 

149(7) of Companies Act, 2013 confirming that they meet criteria of Independence as per relevant provisions 

of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The Board of Directors of the Company has taken 

on record the said declarations and confirmation as submitted by the Independent Directors after undertaking 

due assessment of the veracity of the same. The Independent directors have complied with the code for 

independent director as prescribed in schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and code of conduct for the 

board of directors and senior management personnel of the company. 

 

The company had formulated and implemented code of conduct for the board of directors and senior 

management personnel of the company which is available on the Company’s 

website: http://ifinservices.in/pdf/Code_of_Conduct_for_Directors_and_Senior_Management.pdf. 

 

A STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, 

EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT 

DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR 

 

All the Independent Directors of the Company have enrolled their names in the online database of Independent 

Directors by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of the regulatory requirements. Also, the online 

proficiency self-assessment test as mandated is undertaken by those Independent Directors of the Company 

who are not exempted within the prescribed timelines. 

 

Key Managerial Personnel 

 

During the year under review, there was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. 

 

Hence, as per the provisions of Sections 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, As on the date of this report, Mr. 
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Pradip Sandhir, Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Jaini Jain, Company Secretary, are 

the key managerial personnel of the Company. 

 

Further, being SEBI Registered Category - I Merchant Banker, we have appointed Ms. Pooja Shah, Mr. Ayush 

Sharma as a KMP and Mr. Mayur Parikh Re-designated from KMP to Principal officer under SEBI (Merchant 

Banker) Regulations, 1992 on November 14, 2024. 

 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

 

The Board met 9 times during the Financial Year 2024-2025. The Board of Directors meeting were held on 

May 29, 2024, August 14, 2024, August 29, 2024, September 26, 2024, November 01, 2024, November 14, 

2024, January 13, 2025, February 10, 2025, February 13, 2025 to transact various business. 

 

BOARD COMMITTEES 

 

There are various committees constituted as stipulated under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 namely Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The constitution of all the committees 

as on March 31, 2025 are mentioned below. 

 

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

The Company has formed the Audit Committee as per the provisions of the Section 177 of the Act read with 

the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (as amended). The constituted Audit 

Committee comprises following members as on March 31, 2025. 

 

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship 

Ms. Rutu Sanghvi Chairman Independent Director 

Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Member Independent Director 

Mr. Monil Shah Member Independent Director 

Mr. Mayur Parikh Member Executive Director 

 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as a Secretary of the Audit Committee. The Chairman of the 

Audit Committee shall attend the Annual General Meeting of our Company to furnish clarifications to the 

shareholders in any matter relating to financial statements.  

 

The Committee met 5 times during the Financial Year 2024-2025. The meetings were held on May 29, 2024, 

August 14, 2024, November 14, 2024, February 10, 2025 and February 13, 2025 to transact various business. 

 

The powers, roles and terms of reference of the committee are in compliance with the Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as applicable. 

 

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

The Company has formed the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as per Section 178 and other 

applicable provisions of the act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (as 

amended). The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises the following members as on March 31, 

2025: 
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Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship 

Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Chairman Independent Director 

Ms. Rutu Sanghvi Member Independent Director 

Mr. Monil Shah Member Independent Director 

 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as a Secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

 

The Committee met 4 times during the financial year 2024-2025. The meetings were held on May 29, 2024, 

August 29, 2024, November 01, 2024 and November 14, 2024 to transact various business. 

 

The roles and terms of reference of the committee are in compliance with the Section 178 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and rules made there under and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 as applicable. 

 

3. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 

Our Company has formed the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as per Section 178 and other applicable 

provisions of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (as amended).  

 

The constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises the following members as on March 31, 

2025: 

 

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship 

Ms. Rutu Sanghvi Chairman Independent Director 

Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Member Independent Director 

Mr. Pradip Sandhir Member Managing Director 

 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as a Secretary to the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

 

The Committee met 1 time during the Financial Year 2024-2025, on February 13, 2025 to transact various 

business. 

 

The roles and terms of reference of the committee are in compliance with the Section 178 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and rules made there under and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 as applicable. 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

During the year, all recommendations of Audit Committee were approved by the Board of Directors. 

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 

The Company has formulated and adopted the Nomination and Remuneration Policy in accordance with the 

provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder and the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 



 
 

 Annual Report 2024-2025 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee have formulated the criteria for appointment of Executive, 

Non-Executive and Independent Directors on the Board of Directors of the Company and persons in the Senior 

Management of the Company, their remuneration including determination of qualifications, positive 

attributes, independence of Directors and other matters as provided under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being 

in force). 

 

The said policy is available on the website of the company at 

http://ifinservices.in/pdf/Nomination_and_Remuneration_Policy.pdf  

 

EVALUATION OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD, COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL 

DIRECTORS 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed there under and in compliance 

with the requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual evaluation of 

the performance of the Board as a whole, Individual Directors including Independent Directors, Non-

Independent Directors, Chairperson and the Board Committees. A structured questionnaire was prepared after 

taking into consideration the inputs received from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board's 

functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Meetings of the board, 

functioning of the board, effectiveness of board processes, Board culture, execution and performance of 

specific duties, obligations and governance. 

 

The exercise was also carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman 

of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, independence 

of judgement, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. 

 

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board excluding the 

director being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors 

was carried out by the Independent Directors who also reviewed the performance of the Key Managerial 

Personnel. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY  
 

The information required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of 

Directors/employees of the Company is set out in “Annexure - [1]” of this report. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 

In terms of the requirements of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Board 

of Directors of the Company, hereby state and confirm that: 

 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same; 

 

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at March 31, 2025 and of the profit and loss of the Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2025; 
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c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

d) they have prepared annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

 

e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;  

 

f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. and 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

The Board has adopted policies and procedure for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 

fraud and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial disclosures.  

 

During the year no reportable material weakness in the design or operation were observed. 

 

FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITOR 

 

The auditor of the Company has not reported any fraud to the Audit Committee or Board or to the Central 

Government under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES 

 

During the period under review, the company is not having any subsidiary, joint venture and associate 

company. 

 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

 

During the year under review, Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Sections 73 and 

74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Further, 

Company does not have any deposit which is in violation of Chapter V of the Act. 

 

LOANS TAKEN FROM DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY 

 

During the year under review, the Company has not taken loans from any directors of the Company. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 

 

The details of Loans, guarantee and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are 

given in the Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of Annual Report. 

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

During the FY 2024-25, Company has not entered into any transactions with related parties as defined under 

Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. As per IND AS 24 company had entered into some transactions with 
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related party which were in the ordinary course of business. The details of the related party transactions as 

required under IND AS - 24 are set out in Notes to the financial statements. 

 

Further, the transactions were in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules 

framed thereunder and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. All transactions with related parties were entered 

with approval of the Audit Committee.  

 

The Company has formulated a policy on related party transactions, the same is available on Company’s 

website at http://ifinservices.in/pdf/Related_Party_Transaction_Policy.pdf.  

 

The disclosure in Form AOC- 2 pursuant to Section 134 (3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 

8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is set out as “Annexure [2]”to this Report. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

 

The provisions relating to the corporate social responsibility are not applicable to the company during the 

Financial Year 2024-25. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

The information required under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

Conservation of Energy 

 

In its endeavor towards conservation of energy your company ensure optimal use of energy, avoid wastages 

and conserve energy as far as possible. 

 

Technology Absorption 

 

The Company has not carried out any research and development activities.  

 

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

 

The Company has not made any transaction with any foreign country. Therefore, during the period under 

review there is no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 

The Company has a robust Risk Management policy. The Company through Board and Audit Committee 

oversees the Risk Management process including risk identification, impact assessment, effective 

implementation of the mitigation plans and risk reporting. Risk Management forms an integral part of the 

Company’s planning process. 

 

The Audit Committee has additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. Major risks identified 

by the business and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on continuing basis. 

 

There are no risks, which in the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the Company. 
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VIGIL MECHANISM 

 

Your Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy which is in compliance with the 

provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 4(2)(d)(iv) read with Regulation 22 

of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The policy enables stakeholders, including individual employees, 

directors and their representative bodies, to freely communicate their concerns about illegal or unethical 

practices, instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s code of 

conduct. The Policy provides adequate safeguards against victimization of Director(s)/ employee(s) and direct 

access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. The Protected Disclosures, 

if any reported under this Policy will be appropriately and expeditiously investigated by the Chairman. 

 

Your Company hereby affirms that no Director, employee or any other personnel has been denied access to 

the Chairman of the Audit Committee and that no complaint was received during the year. 

 

The Whistle Blower Policy has been disclosed on the Company’s website under the weblink 

https://ifinservices.in/pdf/WHISTLE_BLOWER_POLICY.pdf  and has been circulated to all the Directors / 

employees.  

 

SIGNIFICANT/MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 

 

There are no significant/material orders passed by the Regulators, Courts, Tribunals, Statutory and quasi-

judicial body impacting the going concern status of the Company and its operations in future. 

 

The details of litigation on tax and other relevant matters are disclosed in the Auditors’ Report and Financial 

Statements which forms part of this Annual Report. 

 

AUDITORS 

 

STATUTORY AUDITOR 

 

M/s. B. T. Vora & Co., Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the company at the 

29th AGM held on September 27, 2023 for the second term of five consecutive financial years.  

 

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for 

any further comments. The Auditors’ Report dated May 29, 2025 is unmodified and does not contain any 

qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

 

The Board has appointed Ms. Insiya Nalawala, proprietor of M/s Insiya Nalawala and Associates, Practicing 

Company Secretaries, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as 

amended. 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

The Secretarial Audit Report in the prescribed Form No. MR – 3 for the Financial Year 2024-25 is annexed 

herewith as “Annexure - [3]” to this Report. The Secretarial Report dated August 13, 2025 does not contain 

any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 
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COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARD 

 

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 

of India on Board meetings and General Meetings respectively. 

 

IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE ACTION 

 

During the year under review, the company has not failed to implement any corporate actions within the 

specified time limit. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN  

 

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, the Annual Return for FY 

2024-25 is uploaded on the website of the Company and the same is available at https://ifinservices.in/   

 

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT  

 

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of Section 148(1) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT (MDAR) 

 

As per requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a detailed review of the developments in the 

industry, performance of the Company, opportunities and risks, segment wise and product wise performance, 

internal control systems, outlook etc. of the Company is given under the head Management Discussion and 

Analysis Report, which forms part of this Annual Report. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 

Your Company strives to incorporate the appropriate standards for corporate governance. However, pursuant 

to Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the 

Company is not required to mandatorily comply with the provisions of certain regulations of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and therefore the Company has not provided a 

separate report on Corporate Governance, although few of the information are provided in this report of 

Directors under relevant heading. 

 

THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR 

STATUS AS OF THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:  

 

Your Company neither made any application nor any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year. 

 

DETAILS OF THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT 

THE TIME OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING A 

LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS 

THEREOF:  
 

Your Company has not obtained any one-time settlement of loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions. 
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DISCLOSURES AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 

The Company has adopted zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has formulated a policy on 

Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules 

thereunder for prevention and Redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. The Company has 

complied with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Act, 2013 to ensures a safe 

workplace for all employees.   

 

The policy aims to provide protection to employees at workplace and prevent and redress complaints of sexual 

harassment and for the matters connected and incidental thereto, with the objective of providing safe working 

environment, where employees feel secure. 

 

An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to Redress complaints related to sexual harassment. During 

the Financial year 2024-2025, the company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment at workplace. 

Further, there was not any complaint pending at the beginning of the year or at the end of the year. 

 

MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961 

During the Financial Year 2024-2025, the company is in compliance with the provisions of Maternity Benefit 

Act, 1961. 

 

WEBSITE 

 

As per Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the 

Company has maintained a functional website namely https://ifinservices.in containing basic information 

about the Company. The website of the Company is containing information like Policies, Shareholding 

Pattern, Financial and information of the designated officials of the Company who are responsible for assisting 

and handling investor grievances for the benefit of all stakeholders of the Company. 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 
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Place: Ahmedabad 
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Managing Director 
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Executive Director 

DIN: 00005646  
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Annexure [1] to Board’s Report 

 

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

 

A. Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of all the employees of the 

Company for the Financial Year 2024-2025 is as follows: 

 

Name of Director Designation Total Annual 

Remuneration (Rs.) 

Ratio of 

remuneration of 

director to the 

Median 

remuneration 

Mr. Pradip Sandhir Managing Director 18,00,000 3.33 

Mr. Mayur Parikh* Executive Director 15,00,000 2.78 

 

*The Designation of Mr. Mayur Parikh has been changed from Non-Executive Director to Executive Director 

of the Company with effect from May 29, 2024. 

 

Notes: 

 

1. Independent Directors are paid only sitting fees for attending the board, committee and general meetings. 

The sitting fees paid to Independent Directors is not covered in the above table. 

 

2. Median remuneration of the Company for all its employees is Rs. 5,40,000/- per annum for the financial 

year 2024-25. 

 

3. The aforesaid details are calculated on the basis of remuneration for the financial year 2024-25. 

 

B. Details of percentage increase in the remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer & 

Company Secretary in the financial year 2024-2025 is as follows: 

 

Name  Designation Remuneration (in Rs.) Increase 

(%) 

Decrease 

(%) 2024-2025 2023-2024 

Mr. Pradip Sandhir Managing Director 

& Chief Financial 

Officer 

18,00,000 10,50,000 71.43% - 

Mr. Mayur Parikh Executive Director 15,00,000 - 100% - 

Ms. Jaini Jain Company Secretary 

& Compliance 

Officer 

16,25,000* 12,25,000 32.68% - 

*The Remuneration details have been taken from Audited Financial Statements which include Bonus for the year 2024-2025. 

 

C. Percentage increase in the median remuneration of all employees in the Financial Year 2024-25:  
77.69%. 

 

D. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2025: 17 employees. 
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E. Comparison of average percentage increase in salary of employees other than the Managerial 

personnel and the percentage increase in the managerial remuneration 
 

Remuneration to Managerial Personnel (MD & WTD) is provided in point B of Annexure-1. While Average 

salary of all employees other than Managerial Personnel is (90.85) % in FY 2024-25 compared to FY 2023-

24.  

F. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 

 

G. Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) 

of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

 

1. List of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn in FY 2024-25: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name Designation Qualification, 

experience 

and Age 

Remuneration 

Received 

(CTC) (PA) 

Date of 

Appointment 

Last 

Employment 

(If any) 

1.  Mr. Pradip 

Sandhir 

Managing 

Director & Chief 

Financial Officer 

B.Com 

15 Years 

56 Years 

18,00,000 30-08-2022 Self Employed 

2.  Mr. Mayur 

Parikh 

Executive 

Director 

CA, 

3 decades 

65 Years 

15,00,000 01-07-2021 Self Employed 

3.  Ms. Jaini 

Jain 

Company 

Secretary & 

Compliance 

Officer 

CS, 

7 Years, 

33 Years 

16,25,000* 17-06-2022 Rising Hotel 

Limited 

4.  Ms. Pooja 

Shah 

KMP as per 

SEBI (Merchant 

Banker) 

Regulations, 

1992 

M.Com, CS, 

LL.B- 

10 years 

33 years 

9,00,000/- 14-11-2024 Aftertrade 

Broking Private 

Limited 

5.  Mr. Ayush 

Sharma 

CS, MBA 

4 Years 

29 Years 

9,35,000/- 01-10-2024 Aftertrade 

Broking Private 

Limited 

6.  Ms. Yashi 

Shah 

Research Analyst CFP 

1 Year 

27 Year 

6,37,500/- 16-09-2024 Self Employed 

7.  Mr. 

Narayan 

Prajapati 

Human 

Resources (HR) 

B.Com 

30 Years 

62 Years 

4,20,000/- 01-10-2024 Torrent 

Pharmaceuticals 

Limited 

8.  Mr. 

Shashank 

Dhamseiya 

Manager CS, LL.B., 

MBA 

7 Years 

34 Years 

43,500/- 11-03-2025 Dahej SEZ 

Limited 

9.  Mrs. 

Ankita 

Karnani 

Manager CS, M.Com 

5 Years 

33 Years 

6,06,000/- 17-04-2024 LTC 

Commercial 

Company 

Private Limited 
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10.  Mr. 

Vidhan 

Sanghvi 

Executive MBA 

5 Years 

34 Years 

4,80,000/- 03-04-2024 Self Employed 

11.  Mr. 

Sudesh 

Joshi 

Manager CS 

2 Years 

29 Years 

5,30,000/- 15-07-2023 - 

*The Remuneration details have been taken from Audited Financial Statements which include Bonus for the year 2024-2025. 

Note: None of the above employees are related to any of our directors. 

 

2. Employees employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year 

which, in the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees: Not Applicable 

 

3. Employees employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part 

of that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees 

per month: Not Applicable 

 

4. Employees employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration 

in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in 

excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by 

himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity 

shares of the company: 

 

There was no such employees employed throughout the financial year or part thereof who was in receipt of 

remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is 

in excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or 

along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company.  

 

The Board of Directors of the Company affirmed that remuneration of all the Key Managerial Personnel of 

the Company are as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

 

5. Remuneration received by Managing Director from subsidiary company. 
 

There are no subsidiary companies of Interactive Financial Services Limited. Hence, no remuneration has 

been received by the Managing Director.  

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 

 

 

 

Date: August 13, 2025 

Place: Ahmedabad 

Pradip Sandhir 

Managing Director 

DIN: 06946411 

 

Mayur Parikh 

Executive Director 

DIN: 00005646  
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[Annexure – 2] to Board’s Report 

Form No. AOC-2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and  

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with related 

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 

length transactions under third proviso thereto  

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:  NIL 

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: NIL 

 

3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not in the ordinary course of Business: NIL 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 

 

 

 

Date: August 13, 2025 

Place: Ahmedabad 

Pradip Sandhir 

Managing Director 

DIN: 06946411 

 

Mayur Parikh 

Executive Director 

DIN: 00005646  
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[Annexure-3] to Board’s Report 

                                                                    
Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

For The Financial Year Ended March 31, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To,  

The Members,  

Interactive Financial Services Limited 

CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023393 

Office No. 508, Fifth Floor, Priviera,  

Nehru Nagar, Manekbag 

Ahmedabad – 380 015, Gujarat, India 

 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by Interactive Financial Services Limited. (hereinafter called the “company”). Secretarial Audit 

was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the 

audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 

and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 

and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Interactive 

Financial Services Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the 

provisions of:  

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;  

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;  

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;  

 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) and the rules and regulations made there under to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment; 

 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 

 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011 and circulars/ guidelines/Amendments issued there under;  

 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and 

circulars/ guidelines/Amendments issued there under; 

 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009 and circulars/ guidelines/Amendments issued there under; 
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(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and circulars/ guidelines/Amendments issued there under; 

 

Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely: 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992 and circulars/ 

guidelines/Amendments issued there under; 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited;  

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with abovementioned provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.  

 

I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the 

Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations as applicable to the Company. 

 

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director. The changes in the composition of 

the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions 

of the Act.  

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 

at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on 

the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.  

 

All decisions of the Board and Committees were carried with requisite majority and captured in the Minutes. 

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.  

 

I further report that during the audit period the following events occurred which had bearing on the Company’s affairs 

in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.: 

 

a) During the period under review the company had come up with Right Issue of 39,17,030 fully paid-up equity 

shares of face value of Rs. 10 each at a price of Rs. 30 per rights equity share including a premium of Rs. 20 

per Equity share aggregating to Rs. 11.75 crore. The Allotment of Equity Shares were made on February 10, 

2025.  

 

Date: August 13, 2025 

Place: Ahmedabad 

For, Insiya Nalawala & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

 

 

 

Insiya Nalawala 

Proprietor 

M. No.: F13422 

C P No.: 22786 

Peer Review No.: 5443/2024 

UDIN: F013422G000986042  

 

Note: This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A forms an integral part of 

this report. 
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Annexure A 

To,  

The Members,  

Interactive Financial Services Limited 

CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023393 

Office No. 508, Fifth Floor, Priviera, Nehru Nagar,  

Ahmedabad – 380 015, Gujarat, India 

 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility 

is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.  

 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis, on the records and 

documents provided by the Management of the Company, to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 

records. I believe that the processes and practices followed by me provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.  

 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 

Company.  

 

4. The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. My examination was limited to verification of procedures on test basis.  

 

5. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc.  

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

Date: August 13, 2025 

Place: Ahmedabad 

For, Insiya Nalawala & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

 

 

 

Insiya Nalawala 

Proprietor 

M. No.: F13422 

C P No.: 22786 

Peer Review No.: 5443/2024 

UDIN: F013422G000986042  
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

OVERVIEW OF INDIAN ECONOMY 
 

Growing Indian economy, rising per capita income and increasing urbanisation are also acting as tailwinds for 

the wealth management industry. The number of affluent middle-class people is on the rise. The World 

Economic Forum estimates 80% of India’s population to fall in the middle-class segment by 2030, up from 

about 50% in 2019. The increase in disposable income will create wealth management needs in the affluent 

middle-class segment. 

 

India has a diversified financial sector undergoing rapid expansion both in terms of strong growth of existing 

financial services firms and new entities entering the market. The sector comprises commercial banks, 

insurance companies, non-banking financial companies, co-operatives, pension funds, mutual funds and other 

smaller financial entities. The banking regulator has allowed new entities such as payment banks to be created 

recently, thereby adding to the type of entities operating in the sector. However, the financial sector in India 

is predominantly a banking sector with commercial banks accounting for more than 64% of the total assets 

held by the financial system. 

 

India has emerged as the fastest-growing major economy in the world and is expected to be one of the top 

three economic powers in the world over the next 10-15 years, backed by its robust democracy and strong 

partnerships. India's appeal as a destination for investments has grown stronger and more sustainable because 

of the current period of global unpredictability and volatility, and the record amounts of money raised by 

India-focused funds in 2022 are evidence of investor faith in the "Invest in India" narrative. 

(Source: IBEF and Indian Economy Survey Report) 

 

OUTLOOK 

 

India’s financial services industry has experienced huge growth in the past few years. This momentum is 

expected to continue. India’s private wealth management Industry shows huge potential. India is expected to 

have 16.57 lakh HNWIs in 2027. This will indeed lead India to be the fourth-largest private wealth market 

globally by 2028. India’s insurance market is also expected to reach US$ 250 billion by 2025. This will further 

offer India an opportunity of US$ 78 billion in additional life insurance premiums from 2020-30. 

 

The outlook for India’s financial sector appears bright. The vision of Viksit Bharat by 2047 is indeed an 

opportunity for a prosperous society, robust financial services sector, strong public finances, and economic 

sovereignty. The elements of a robust financial services sector include a highly competitive and viable banking 

sector, universal access to banking and other financial services for all citizens, lowest intermediation costs, 

efficient and quick access to credit and equity funding for small businesses, highly liquid, efficient, and well-

regulated stock, bond, and commodity markets. 

 

The next big step in the coming years is likely to be towards Artificial Intelligence/ Machine Learning 

(AI/ML), Decentralised Finance, Internet of Things (IoT), etc., which have a vast potential to disrupt the 

digital payments ecosystem. Further, the vision is for India to evolve as a ‘fintech nation’ with the highest 

number of fintech firms and the highest fintech adoption rate by incumbents fuelled by digital public 

infrastructure. 

 

The Indian financial sector is at a turnpike moment. The dominance of banking support to credit is being 

reduced, and the role of capital markets is rising. For a country that aspires to be a developed nation by 2047, 

this is a long-awaited and welcome development. Being reliant on and exposed to the capital market, however, 
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comes with its challenges and trade-offs. As India’s financial sector undergoes this critical transformation, it 

must also brace for likely vulnerabilities and prepare itself with regulatory and government policy levers to 

intervene and hedge, as required. 

 

(Source: Economic Survey Report) 

 

1. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT 

 

The services sector continues to be a significant contributor to India's growth, accounting for about 55 per 

cent of the total size of the economy in FY25. The significant domestic demand for services such as education, 

healthcare, finance, tourism, hospitality, and entertainment is underpinned by a large and young population. 

Rapid urbanisation supports transportation, housing, sanitation, and utility services. The expansion of e-

commerce platforms has generated heightened requirements for logistics, digital payments, and related 

services.  

 

The Government has played a crucial role in fostering the growth and competitiveness of India's services 

sector by creating an enabling environment, promoting investment, enhancing skills, and facilitating market 

access. For instance, the Digital India campaign has fostered growth in digital services, export promotion 

schemes have encouraged services exports, infrastructure development has boosted logistics, tourism, and 

hospitality industry, and skill development initiatives have provided increased opportunities for the workforce. 

Furthermore, targeted efforts in healthcare and tourism have enhanced accessibility and development, 

ensuring a promising future for India's services sector. 

 

Road Ahead 

 

India's services sector has thrived on low-cost offerings. The digitisation of services, coupled with appropriate 

policy nudges, kept progressively transforming the nature of service delivery almost irreversibly during the 

early part of the last decade. The services exports are diversifying beyond software to include Human 

Resources (HR), legal, and design services in line with emerging global demands. Thus, two significant 

transformations are reshaping India's services landscape: the rapid technology-driven transformation of 

domestic service delivery and the diversification of India's services exports.  

 

Domestically, start-ups drive innovation, improving access to credit, raw materials, and markets. Aided by the 

deep technology ecosystem and the consistent policy push, many technology start-ups are digitising 

manufacturing and other services. The embedded service content of the non-service economic activities has 

increased significantly, as evidenced by the National Accounts Statistics. The post-production value addition 

in activities is also increasingly dependent on services like e-commerce, innovative packaging and 

advertisement and modern logistics services. 

(Source: Economic Survey Report) 

 

2. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

 

OPPORTUNITIES: 

 

With continuous support by the Government towards entrepreneurship (e.g. ease of doing business), India 

sees an increasing number of startups and small businesses. With the advent of SME exchange, it has become 

easier for SMEs to get listed. Furthermore, the rising penetration of private equity and venture capital in Indian 

startups is expected to result in increased M&As and IPOs. 
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• Revival from Indian Equity market post lock down will revive the IPO deals and thereby push demand 

of merchant bankers.  

 

• Growth in foreign direct investment and also funding by promoters in to companies will push demand 

of merchant bankers for valuation assignments.  

 

• Various funding transactions push demand of merchant bankers for valuation certifications. 

 

THREATS: 

 

Despite opportunities, there are significant factors presenting threats to our business viz: 

 

• Capital Market gets affected by events such as interest rate hikes, monsoon performance, tax concerns, 

other global events & domestic political events such as interim & state elections.  

 

• Continuous downward pressure on the fees and commissions caused by heightened competition and 

willingness of most players to deliver services at very low fees.  

 

• The effect of any of the adverse events on the capital market would pose a threat for the process of 

capital formation and resource raising. 

 

3. SEGMENT-WISE / PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE: 

 

The Company has delivered a satisfactory financial and operating performance for 2024-25. The total revenue 

is ₹ 740.81 lakhs in FY 2024-25 as compared to ₹ 306.65 lakhs in FY 2023-24. The Profit before interest and 

taxes stands ₹ 405.64 lakhs for the FY 2024-25 as against ₹ 158.27 lakhs in 2023-24. 

 

4. OUTLOOK FOR FY 2025-26  

 

We are a SEBI-registered Category I Merchant Banker with a primary focus on SME IPOs in previous 

financial years. In FY 2024-25, we successfully completed our first Main Board IPO, which gave us the 

experience and insight into the dynamics of larger public issues and broader public participation. Having 

witnessed the potential and the opportunities in Main Board listings, we now intend to strengthen our focus in 

this segment. Accordingly, for the current financial year 2025-26, we aim to achieve a minimum of 5 Main 

Board IPO listings. Alongside this, we also plan to enhance our SME IPO activities with a target of completing 

at least 10 SME IPOs, which is higher than our earlier performance. This balanced approach is part of our 

strategy to expand and diversify our capital market advisory services. 

 

5. RISK AND CONCERN 

 

The Company’s ability to foresee and manage business risks is crucial in achieving favorable results. Risk 

management at Interactive Financial Services Limited is an integral part of the business, focusing to mitigate 

the adverse impact of risks on business objectives. The Company has laid down a well–defined risk 

management procedure covering the risk identification, risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation 

process. The Board periodically reviews the risks and suggests steps to be taken to control and mitigate the 

same through a properly defined framework. 

 

6. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUECY 
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The Company has an adequate internal control system adopted for operating procedures, policies and process 

guidelines. The guidelines are well-documented with clearly defined authority limits corresponding with the 

level of responsibility for each functional area. Further, the Company has budgetary control system to monitor 

expenditure against approved budgets on an ongoing basis. The Company’s robust internal audit programme 

which works to conduct a risk-based audit not only tests the adherence to laid down policies and procedures 

but also suggests improvements in the current processes and systems.  

 

7. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL 

PERFORMANCE 

 

The Financial performance of the company during the FY 2024-25 as compared to FY 2023-24 is as 

under: 

          (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024 % of 

Increase/Decrease 

Gross Revenue from 

operations 
740.81 306.65 141.58% 

Profit Before Tax 393.34 156.75 150.93% 

Profit after Tax 285.35 60.94 386.24% 

 

Operational Performance 

 

The Company continued to focus on improving operational efficiency leading to better returns for the 

shareholders. Further, the company has significantly enhanced its operational performance by establishing 

prudent risk management framework. 

 

8. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONSHIP 

FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEPOLE EMPLOYED 

 

Human resource practices and policies at Interactive Financial Services Limited ensure that all employees, 

wherever they work, whatever their role is, are always treated equally, fairly and respectfully. We maintain 

consistent and transparent diversity policies. 

   

Our human resource team believes in personnel management, which involves planning, organizing, directing 

and controlling of the recruitment and resource management, training & development, compensation, 

integration and maintenance of people for the purpose of contributing to organizational, individual and social 

goals. 

 

People power is one of the pillars of success of company. As on March 31, 2025 the Company employs 17 

employees. Going ahead, the Company aims to retain and develop the existing employees and align their goals 

with the common business vision and mission. 

 

9. THE DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

 

During the financial year, the details of significant change in the key financial ratios i.e. change of more than 

25% as compared to the previous year along with the detailed explanation is summarized below on standalone 

basis: 
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Sr. 

No. 

Key Financial Ratios F.Y.      

2024-25 

 F.Y.  

2023-24 

Changes in 

% 

Reasons for change 

1. Debtors Turnover 

Ratio (in days) 

 

6.65 27.59 -75.91% Increase in days in 

receivables is due to 

recent increase in 

turnover. 

2. Inventory Turnover 

Ratio* 

NA NA NA - 

3. Interest Coverage 

Ratio  

 

7.17 0.00 100% A new unsecured loan is 

borrowed by the 

company. 

4. Current Ratio (in 

times) 

 

13.92 13.80  0.84% - 

5. Debt Equity Ratio  

(in times) 

 

0.02 0.00 100% A new unsecured loan is 

borrowed by the 

company. 

6. Operating Margin  

(in %) 

 

39.87% 38.23% 1.67% - 

7. Net Profit Margin  

(in %) 

 53.33% 

 

 

119.51% 

 

 

-55.37% 

Decrease is mainly due 

to changes in other 

comprehensive income 

due to equity 

instruments. 
*The company operated in service industry hence the Inventory Turnover Ratio is not applicable to us. 

 

The Return on Net Worth during the FY 2024-25 was 19.47% as compared to 35.98% in FY 2023-24. The 

decrease in the return on Net Worth is mainly due to increase in equity shareholders funds due to rights issue 

made during the year. 

 

10. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 

Statement made in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the various parts may be “forward 

looking statement” within the meaning of application securities laws and regulations. The actual result may 

differ from those expectations depending upon the economic conditions, changes in Government regulation 

and amendments in tax laws and other internal and external factors. 
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STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

OF FY 2024-2025 

 

 Audit Report 

 

 Balance Sheet 

 

 Statement of Profit and Loss Account 

 

 Cash Flow 

 

 Notes to Accounts 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To The Members,
Interactive Financial Services Limited
Report on the Audited Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements ofInteractive Financial Services Limited (“the Company”), which
comprises the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of changes in equity, the Cashflow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as the financial statements).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income,
the changes in equity and cash flowsfor the year ended on that date.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code ofethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code ofethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the

financial statements.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We

have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Emphasis of Matter
Building & Furniture located at 603, Harekrishna Complex. Paldi, Ahmedabad, Gujarat having carrying amountof Rs. 1.58

lacs earlier upto F.Y. 2021-22 were included in Property, Plant & Equipment which were classified as Non current Asset
Held for Sale as per Note No. 9 during F.Y. 2022-23. As per Indian Accounting Standard - 105, one of condition to classify
the asset held for sale is that sale should be completed with in 12 months of classification but there are exceptions to that
condition and extension of period for more than 12 months is allowed. As per written representation received from the

management, there is no change in planto sell the asset in current condition, but due to certain local regulatory constraints,
they are not able to execute the sale in given period of time. Also, as there is change in management during P.Y. 2022-23,
the documents necessary to execute the sale are still under process. We have received no documentary evidences regarding
condition that fulfil for extension of time beyond 12 months, but given the nature of property being immovable nature, such
scenarios are common. Except to above observation, we do not find classification of such asset held for sale to be

inappropriate or inaccurate.
Our conclusion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

ormation other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

pany’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility
rporate Governance report and shareholder's information but does not include the financial statements and our



Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibilityfor the Financial Statements
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Companyin accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement whenit exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

—_auditot’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
¢ ss,
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makesitprobable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work;and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
| As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in

terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in Annexure “A”a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2 As required by section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:
(a) we have sought and obtainedall the information and explanations, whichto the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(b) in our opinion, the Company has kept proper books of account as required by law, so far as appears from our
examination of the books.

(c) the balance sheet, the statement ofprofit and loss including other comprehensive income, the statement of changesin
equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133
of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(f) With respect to the adequacy ofthe internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section
197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company toits directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act:

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion andto the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us :-

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements. (Refer
note 25 of the standalone financial statements)

hmedabad \+
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iv) (a) The Management has represented, that, to the bestofits knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to orin any other personor entity, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons orentities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best ofits knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause(i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) The company has notdeclared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the provisions of section 123
of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which hasa feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated after 03rd August, 2024 for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Also, the
audit trail has been preserved by the Company asper the statutory requirements for record retention.

For, B. T. VORA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

¥ » Firm Registration No. 123652W

C. A. SHETH
Place : Ahmedabad Partner
Date : 29th May, 2025 Membership No.180506

UDIN : 25180506BMLXRK8686



Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ ReportReferred to in paragraph | under the heading of "Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements ofour report of even date;
On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information andexplanation given to us during the course of our audit. we report that:

(i) Inrespect of Fixed Assets
a. A)

B)

(ii) a

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars includingquantitative details and location of the Property, Plant and Equipment.
No Intangible assets are held by the Companyas onthe balance sheet date. Accordingly.Paragraph |(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable during the year under review.
The management during the year has physically verified all the Property, Plant andEquipment. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is a regular
programme of verification which, in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size ofthe Companyand the natureofits assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on suchverification.
Based upon the audit procedure performed and according to the records of the Company,the title deeds of the immovable properties are held in the name of the company and wasverified byus.
the company has not revalued its PPE or Intangible assets during the year. Accordingly,Paragraphs |(d) of the Order is not applicable during the year under review.
According to the information and explanations given to us, No proceedings have beeninitiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under theBenami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made there under.

The company’s nature of operation (Service provider) does not require it to holdinventories. Therefore, the provisions of clauseII (a) of paragraph 3 of the Order are notapplicable to the Company.

During any point of time of the year, the company has not been sanctioned any workingcapital limits, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of currentassets. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (ii) (b) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable to the company.

(iii) The Company has made investment in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and
granted unsecured loans to other parties, during the year, in respect of which:

a During the year, the Company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans,or stood guarantee, or provided security to the following entities:

Sr. No. Unsecured LoansParticulars
(Amount in lakhs)

I Aggregate amountgranted / provided during the year
- Subsidiaries

%

- Joint Ventures
a

- Associates
a

- Others 274.60

Balance outstanding as at March 31, 2025 in respect of]
above cases
- Subsidiaries

=
- Joint Ventures

-- Associates
=

- Others 936.92
b_ In our opinion, the investment made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans, duringthe year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.



c The schedule of repayment of principal and paymentof interest in respect of the loans andadvances in the nature of loans have not been stipulated as these loans are repayable ondemand. Thus, we are unable to comment whether the repaymentsor receipts during the yearare regular and report amounts overdue for more than ninety days, if any, as required underclause (iii)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order,
d The schedule of repayment of principal and paymentof interest in respect of the loans andadvances in the nature of loans have not been stipulated as these loans are repayable ondemand. Thus we are unable to report amounts overdue for more than ninety days, if any, asrequired under clause (iii)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order.
e There were no loans or advancesin the nature of loan granted which has/have fallen dueduring the year, have been renewed or extended.

f The Company has granted loans or advancesin the nature of loans either repayable on demandor without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Details of the same are as below:
(Amount in Lakhs)

All Parties other than
promotors & related parties

Sr. No. |Particulars

l Aggregate amountof loans/advances in nature of loan
~ Repayable on demand (A) 922.63
- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of
repayment (B)
Total (A+B) 922.63
Percentage ofloans/advances in nature of loan to the total
fads 98.48%a

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Actinrespect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, asapplicable.
(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence

reporting under clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable.
(vi) As per the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of maintenance ofcost records

specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are notapplicable to the company during the year under reference, Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(vi)of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
(vii) According to information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory and other dues:

a According to the information and explanations given to us and on thebasis of our examinationof the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of accountin respectof undisputed statutory dues including Income Tax, Goods & Services tax and other material
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of
employees' state insurance, provident fund, Sales tax, VAT, cess, duty of excise and duty of
customs.

b There are no amounts of any statutory dues whichare yet to be deposited on account of anydispute except asstated below.

Name of|Natureof the
2 Period to which the|_ Forum where dispute isAmount (in lakhs)

:Statue Dues amount relate pendingIncome Tax Commissioner of Income TaxXx 149.08 A.Y. 2018-19Act 1961 income Tix 8
(Appeals)

(viii) We have not come across any transaction(s) which were previously not recorded in the books ofaccount of the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the yearin the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961.

Ahmedabad \+
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(ix) a The Companyhasnot defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings orin payment of
interest thereon to the lender. Therefore, details required under clause 3 ix(a) is not applicable.

b The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bankor financial institution or
government or any government authority.

¢ The Companydid not obtain any money by way of term loans during the year and there were
no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (ix)
(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

d Wereport that the company has not utilised funds raised on short term basis for long term
purpose. Accordingly, reporting under this clause (ix) (d) is not applicable.

e On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations ofitssubsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Act.

f The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies, as defined under the Act.

(x) a In our opinion and according to the information explanation given to us, money raised by wayof right issue of the equity shares of the Company during the year, have been, prima facie,
applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which they were raised and
amount which were unutilised at the end of the year is given below.

(Amount in Lakhs)
Sr. Object as stated in the Offer Amount proposed|Actual amount! Unutilized
No. Document to be utilized utilized Amount

I Setting Up of Office Space 304.5 14.5 290
2 Increase Networth of Company 595.5 $95.5 0
3 General Corporate purpose 250 250 0
4 Issue Related Expense 25.11 10.68 14.43

Total 1175.11 870.68 304.43
- Further, the Company has not raised any monies by way of debt instruments.

b !n our opinion and according to information provided to us, the Company has not made anypreferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially
or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause (x)(b) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) a During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried outinaccordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
by the Company nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,nor have webeen informed ofany such instance by the management.

b No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government by the
auditors of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date ofthis report.

¢ As represented by the management, no whistle blower complaints received by the Companyduring the year and upto the dateofthis report.
(xii) In our opinion, the Companyis not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii)of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has
complied with provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act with respect to transactions withrelated parties and the company has not entered into any transactions with related parties which
attract provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act.

(xiv) a In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.Laefe \O RA

b We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of our audit
report, for the period under audit.



(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or personsconnected with them during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are notapplicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a The Companyis not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
& Act, 1934. Therefore, reporting under clause (xvi)(a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the Order are
b) not applicable.

(C The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in Core Investment& Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“Directions”) by the Reserve Bank of India.d) Accordingly, reporting under clause (xvi)(c) and (d) of paragraph 3 of the Order are notapplicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately preceding financial
year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the Statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii)of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) On thebasis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization offinancial assets and

(xx)

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying financial statements and ourknowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of theevidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causeus to believethat any material uncertainty exists as on the date of this audit report and that the Company is notcapable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall duewithin a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not anassurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based onthe facts up to date of the audit report and weneither give any guarantee nor any assurancethat allliabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged bythe Company as and when theyfall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting underclause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

For, B. T. VORA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 123652W

C. A. SHETH
Partner
Membership No.180506
UDIN : 25180506BMLXRK8686

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2025
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INTERACTIVE F INANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED.
(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section ofourreport of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
Opinion
Wehave audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Interactive Financial ServicesLimited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statementsof the Company for the year ended onthatdate.
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls systemover financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operatingeffectively as at March 31, 2025, based on,the internal control over financial reporting criteria establishedby the Companyconsidering the essential components ofinternal control stated in the Guidance Note onAudit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of CharteredAccountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s managementis responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controlsbased on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering theessential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal FinancialControls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”.These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financialcontrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection offrauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation ofreliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financialreporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit ofInternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards onAuditing, issued by ICAI and deemedto be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of InternalFinancial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standardsand the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit toobtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reportingwas established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financialcontrols system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financialcontrols over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls overfinancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the designand operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected dependonthe auditor’s judgement, including the assessment ofthe risks of material misstatementof the financialstatements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained issufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial<0Gontrals system over financial reporting.ntrals sy porting
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of managementand directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For, B. T. VORA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 123652W

Ahmedabad
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C. A. SHETH
Partner
Membership No.180506
UDIN: 25180506BMLXRK8686

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2025



INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023393

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars Note As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
No. 2025 2024

ASSETS
Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipments 2 27.29 4.71
(b) Financial assets

i. Investments 3 398.86 103.88
(c) Deferred tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net) 16 - 3.79
(d) Other non-current assets 5 2.40 2.40
Total non-current assets 428.55 114.78
Current assets
(a) Financial assets

i. Investments 3 312.08 .
ii. Trade receivables 6 2.53 24.45
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 7 129.95 21.07
iv. Bank balances other than (iii) above 7 806.07 130.00
v. Loans 4 936.92 1033.73

(b) Current tax Assets (Net) 15 16.39 -
(c) Other current assets 8 367.61 11.98
Total current assets 2571.55 1221.23
Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale 9 1.58 1.58

Total Assets 3001.68 1337.59

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 10 693.01 301.31
(b) Other equity 1] 2115.62 947.81
Total equity 2808.64 1249.12
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities - -
(b) Deferred taxliabilities (Net) 16 8.31 -
Total non-current liabilities 8.31 -
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

i. Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 12 - -
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 69.13 7.12
small enterprises

ii. Loans 13 55.85 -
(b) Other current liabilities 14 59.76 14.18
(c) Current year tax (Net) 15 - 67.16
Total current liabilities 184.73 88.47
Total liabilities 193.04 88.47
Total Equity and Liabilities 3001.68 1337.59
Material accounting polices and notes forming part of Financial

| to 37Statements
As per our report of even date

For, B. T. VORA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ae
Firm Registration No. 12365

Bp ae
-Mayur Parikh

Managing Dir
C. A. SHETH CFO ctor
Partner DIN : 06946411 : 00005646
Membership No.180506
UDIN: 25180506BMLXRK8686

Company Secretary
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2025 Date : 29th May, 2025



INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023393

STATEMENTOF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025
Amountin Rs. Lakhs

Particulars pay 2024-2025 2023-2024
Income from Operation

I. |Revenue from operations 17 740.81 306.65
I]. ]Other Income 18 110.32 41.03
II. Total Income 851.13 347.68
IV. |Expenses:

Employee benefit expense 19 122.99 57.41
Financial costs 20 12.30 1.51
Depreciation and amortization expense 2 1.83 0.63
Other expenses 21 320.66 131.38

Total Expenses 457.78 190.93

V. |Profit before tax (III - IV) 393.34 156.75
VI. |Tax expense:

(1) Current tax 16 106.71 95.77
(2) Deferred tax 1.29 0.05
Net Tax Expense/ (Benefit) 108.00 95.81

VIIL| Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing business (XI-XII) 285.35 60.94
IX. |Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations : -
X |Tax expenses of discontinued operations - -
XI |Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax)(IX-X) - :
XII |Profit/(loss) for the period (VIII+XI) 285.35 60.94

XIII] Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Equity Instruments designated through other comprehensive 22
income 120.56 335.31

(b) Income Tax on above (10.81) (29.76)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 109.74 305.54

XIV |Total Comprehensive Income for the year (XII+XIID 395.09 366.48
XV |Earnings per equity share

(1) Basic 29 6.772 1.658
(2) Diluted 6.772 1.658
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial

1 to 37Statements
As per our report of even date -
For. B. T. VORA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 123652W

Ahmedabad
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Pradip Sandhis
Managing Direc
DIN : 06946411 —C. A. SHETH

Partner
Membership No.180506
UDIN: 25180506BMLXRK8686

Jaini Jain
Company Secretary

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2025 Date : 29th May, 2025



INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023393

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2025
|Amount in Lakhs]

Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before taxation and extraordinary items 393.34 156.75
Adjustmentfor :-
Depreciation and Amortization 1.83 0.63
Interest Expense 12.30 1.51
Impairment Allowance on ECL (net ofwrite offs) 2.93 -
Bad Debts & Advances Written off - 29.88
Gain on Fair Valuation on Mutual Fund (FVTPL) (12.09) -
Dividend Income on Equity Shares (0.00) (0.08)
Interest Income (93.52) (40.60)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 304.40 148.11
Change in working Capital:
Adjustment for :-
Decrease/(increase) in Trade receivables 21.92 (22.47)
Decrease/(increase) in Other Non-current Assets - (1.32)
Decrease/(increase) in Other current Assets (355.63) (4.84)
(Decrease) /increase in Trade payables 62.01 4.79
(Decrease) /increase in Other current liabilities 45.58 (37.08)
Cash Generated from Operations 78.26 87.18
Direct tax Paid (net of refund) (192.80) (42.87)
Cash Flow before extraordinary items (114.53) 44.32
Extraordinary Items/Prior Period Items - .
Net cash from/ (used in) Operating Activities (114.53) 44.32

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of Non-current investments 123.35 692.19
Purchase of Non-current investments (597.76) -
(Increase)/Decrease in Current - Financial loans/advances 96.80 (713.56)
Dividend Income on Equity shares 0.00 0.08
Purchase of Fixed Assets (24.41) (4.43)
Interest income 93.52 40.60
Net Cash from/(used in) Investment Activities (308.50) 14.88

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance Cost Expense (12.30) (1.51)
Proceeds from Right Issue (net of expenses) 1164.43 -
Repayment ofcurrent financial borrowing (106.13) -
Proceeds ofcurrent financial borrowing 161.97 -
Net Cash from/ (used in) Financial activities 1207.97 (1.51)

NET INCREASE /(-) DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 784.94 57.68
OPENING BALANCE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 151.07 93.39
CLOSING BALANCE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 936.01 151.07

Note:
1 The above statements of the cash flow has been prepared under the "Indirect methods" set out in Ind As - 7 on

‘Statement of Cash Flow’.
2 Previous yearfigures have been regrouped or recast wherever, considered necessary.
3 Component of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash on Hand 3.07 0.98
Balances with bank - In Current accounts 126.88 20.09
Other Bank Balances - FDR maturity less than three months 806.07 130.00

Total 936.01 151.07
As per our report of even date attached.
For, B. T. VORA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 123652W

Ahmedabad
\
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C.A. SHETH
Partner
Membership No.180506
UDIN : 25180506BMLXRK8686

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

_
ip Sandhir Mayur Parikh

Managing Director &
CFO
DIN : 06946411

Director

DIN : 00005646

~“wis,aini Jain
Company Secretary

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2025



STATEMENT ON MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BACKGROUND
Interactive Financial Services Limited (‘the Company’) is a Listed Public Limited Company
engaged primarily in providing Merchant Banking and allied services. The Company is a SEBI
Registered Category | Merchant Banker. The Company’s registered office is at 508, 5th Floor,
Privier, Nehru Nagar, Ahmedabad - 380015, Gujarat, India.

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

a)

b)

c)

d)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS
Statement of compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and the guidelines
issued by Securities Exchange of India (SEBI) to the extent applicable. The accounting policies are
applied consistently to all the periods presented inthe financials.
Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees which is the Company’s functional
currency, in lakhs rounded off to two decimals except as otherwise stated as permitted by Schedule
Ill of the Companies Act.

Basis of Measurement
These financial statements have been prepared ona historical cost convention basis, except for the
following:
(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measuredat fair value.

(ii) Assets held for sale- Measured at the lower of (a) carrying amount and (b) Fair Value less cost
to sell. In absence of Certain amount of Fair Value of Office Building & Furniture held for sale,
the same is measured at carrying amount with an assumption that fair value of the assets is much
higher than carrying value considering the increase in real estate prices in the Ahmedabad.

(iii) Net defined benefit plans- Plan assets measured at Fair Value less present value of defined
benefit obligation.

(iv) Determining the Fair Value
While measuring the Fair Value ofan asset ora liability, the Company uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a Fair Value hierarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset orliability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).
If the inputs used to measure the Fair Value of an asset ora liability fall into different levels of the
Fair Value hierarchy, then the fair value measurementis categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the Fair Value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
Use of Estimates and Judgement
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
the accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are known or
materialised. The most significant estimates and assumptions are described below:



e)

Assumptions and Estimations
Information about assumption and estimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment are as below:

1.

3s

Impairment test of financial & non-financial assets
a) For the purpose of assessing recoverability of non-financial assets, assets are grouped at the
lower levels for which there are individually identifiable cash flows (Cash Generating Units).

b) The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment ofa significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which
can result in different levels of allowances.

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

- The Company’s internal credit grading model, which assigns PDsto the individual grades.
- The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the
qualitative assessment.

- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

- Development of ECL models, includes the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

- It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss
experience and adjust when necessary.

Allowance for bad debts
The Management makes estimates related to the recoverability of receivables, whose book
values are adjusted through an allowance for Expected losses. Management specifically
analyzes accounts receivable, customers‘ creditworthiness, current economic trends and
changes in customer’s collection terms when assessing the adequate allowance for expected
losses, which are estimated over the lifetime of the debts.

Recognition and measurementof Provisions and Contingencies
The Company’s Management estimates key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude
of an outflow of resources based on available information and the assumptions and methods
deemed appropriate. Wherever required, these estimates are prepared with the assistance of
legal counsel. As and when additional information becomes available to the Company,
estimates are revised and adjusted periodically.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities
The Management makes estimates as regards to availability of future taxable profits against
which unabsorbed depreciation/ tax losses carried forward can be used.

Measurements of Defined benefit obligations
The measurements are based on key actuarial assumptions, if applicable.

Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-currentas per the Company’s normal
operating cycle (not exceeding twelve months) and other criteria set out in the ScheduleIII to the
Companies Act.

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
rupee as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.



1.2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement
The Company had applied for the one time transition exemption of considering the carrying cost on
the transition date i.e. Ist April, 2016 as the deemed cost under Ind AS. Hence regarded thereafter
as historical cost.

Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost (which includes capitalised borrowing costs)
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of
Property, Plant and Equipment comprises:

a) its purchase price, including import duties and nonrefundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates.

b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.

c) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
whichit is located.

If significant parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of Property, Plant and Equipment and
depreciated accordingly. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment
is recognised in Statement ofprofit or loss.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

(iii) Depreciation, Estimated useful life and estimated residual value
Depreciation is calculated using the Straight Line Method, pro rata to the period of use, taking into
account useful lives and residual value of the assets. The Company depreciates its property, plant
and equipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule [I to the Act and
managementbelieve that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule II to the Act.
Depreciation is computed with reference to cost or revalued value as per previous GAPP asthe case
may be. The assets residual value and useful life are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amounts. These are included in the statement of Profit and Loss.

b) Intangible Assets

(i) Recognition and measurement
Computer softwares have finite useful lives and are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. The same are tested for impairment, if any, at the end of
each accounting period.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to whichit relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands, when incurred is recognised in statementofprofit or loss.

(iii) Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in
statement of profit or loss. Computer software are amortised over their estimated useful life or 5

years, whichever is lower. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted, if required.
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Financial Instruments
A financial instrumentis any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative
contracts such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and
currencyoptions.

Financial Assets
A financial instrumentis any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity andafinancial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative
contracts such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and
currency options.

a)

b)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income-
[FVTOCI], or Fair Value Through Profit and Loss-[FVTPL] and - those measured at
Amortised Cost.[AC]. The classification depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through the Profit and Loss are expensed in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

In case of investments
i) In Equity instruments

- For subsidiaries, associates and Joint ventures - Investments are measured at cost and tested
for impairment periodically. Impairment (if any) is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.
- For Other than subsidiaries, associates and Joint venture - Investments are measured at
FVTOCI.

ii) In Mutual fund
Investments is measured at FVTPL.

iii) In Debt instruments
The Company measures the debts instruments at Amortised Cost. Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payment of
principal and interest [SPPI] are measured at amortised cost. Gain or loss on a debt instrument
that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of the hedging relationship,is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using the Effective interest rate method.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when:
- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from financial asset, or
- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.
Where the Companyhas transferred an asset and has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised.
Where the Companyhasnot transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership ofthe
financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.
Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has not retained the control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains the
control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of
continuing involvementin the financial asset.
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d) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:
a) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, and bank balance. except where asset is not recoverable it will be
written in same year.
b) Trade receivables.
The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
- Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
- For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.

(ii) Financial Liabilities
a)

b)

d)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at FVTPL and
- those measured at Amortised Cost (AC)
The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL or
AC,
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at Fair Value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL are designated atthe initial
date of recognition. only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, Fair Value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in

OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit or loss. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. AC is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to
interest-bearing loans and borrowings.



e) Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

f) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Companyor the counterparty.

g) Derivative financial instruments
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts,
interest rate swaps and forward commodity contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks,
interest rate risks and commodity price risks respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at Fair Value on the date on which a derivative contract is

entered into and are subsequently re-measured at Fair Value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets whenthe Fair Valueis positive and as financial liabilities when the Fair Value

d) Trade Receivables
Trade receivable are recognised initially at Fair Value and subsequently measured at AC using the
effective interest method less provision for impairment. As per Ind AS 109 the Company has
applied ECL for recognising the allowance for doubtful debts. Where Company has offered
extended credit period [ECP] to the debtors, the said amount is recorded at present value, with
corresponding credit in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the extended credit
period.

e) Cash and Cash Equivalent
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of the cash flows, cash and cash equivalent
includes the cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions other short term, highly
liquid investments with original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

f) Contributed Equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incidental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

I) Dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, in the year in whichit is to be approved
by shareholders.

Il) Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders
(adjusted for amounts directly charged to Reserves) before/after Exceptional Items (net of tax) by
Weighted average number of Equity shares (excluding treasury shares).

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders
(adjusted for amounts directly charged to Reserves) before/after Exceptional Items (net of tax) by
Weighted average numberof Equity shares (excluding treasury shares) considered for basic earning
per shares including dilutive potential Equity shares.



e) Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at Fair Value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at AC. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of borrowings using the
effective interest method. Processing/Upfront fee are treated as prepaid asset and netted off from
borrowings. The same is amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. Preference
shares are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these preference shares, if approved, by
shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, are recognised in profit or loss as finance
costs, in the year when approved. Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid including any non-cash assets transferred or liability assumed, is
recognised in Statement of profit or loss as other gains or (losses). Borrowings are classified as
current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of
liabilities for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material
provision of a long term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the sameis classified as
current unless the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of financial
statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence ofthe breach.

f) Trade and Other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid at the period end. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their Fair Value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

g) Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currencies of the Company at
the exchangerate prevailing at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets (other than investments
in companies registered outside India) and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Investments in
companies registered outside India are converted at rate prevailing at the date of acquisition. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at Fair Value in a foreign currency are translated
into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the Fair Value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.
Difference on account of changes in foreign currency are generally charged to the statement of
profit & loss.

h) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of
the government.

The Company derives revenues primarily from Merchant Banking Consultancy service fees which
includes arranger fees, advisory fees, lead manager fees and are recognized when the Company
satisfies performance obligation.

“Unbilled revenues’ (contract asset) represent revenue earned in excess of billings as at the end of
the reporting period. Where right to consideration is unconditional upon passage of time is

< VORA3 classified as a financial asset however, for fixed price development contracts, where milestone is~Ne not due as per contract terms as on date of reporting, the sameis classified as non-financial asset.
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Other Income
a) Dividend income is recognised when right to receive dividend is established.
b) Interest and other income are recognised on accrual basis on time proportion basis and measured
at effective interest rate and considered as business income.
c) Income from Sale of Shares and .Securities are recognized on the date of the relevant
transactions.

i) Government Grants
(i) Grants from the Government are recognised at their Fair Value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all the attached
conditions.

(ii) Government grant relating to purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment are included in "Other
current/ non-current liabilities" as Government Grant - Deferred Income and are credited to Profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the expected life of the related asset and presented within "Other
Operating revenue".

j) Employee Benefits
(i) During Employment benefits
(a) Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is

recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company hasa present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
(ii) Post-Employment benefits
(a) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which Company pays fixed
contribution into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay future
amounts. The Company has no obligation for payment to any contributions as per the relevant Act.

(b) Defined benefit plans
The Company paysgratuity to the employees who have has completed five years of service with the

company at the time when employee leaves the Company. The gratuity is payable as per the
provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The gratuity liability is not ascertained as employees’
have not completed five years of service as on 31st March, 2025.

(c) Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the
normal retirement date or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. In case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more
than twelve months after the end of reporting period are discounted to the present value.

k) Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in statement of profit and
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or in
equity. In such cases, the tax is also recognised in the other comprehensive income orin equity.

(a) Current Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or subsequently enacted at
the Balance sheet date.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Other Income 

a) Dividend income is recognised when right to receive dividend is established.

b) Interest and other income are recognised on accrual basis on time proportion basis and measured

at effective interest rate and considered as business income.

c) Income from Sale of Shares and -Securities are recognized on the date of the relevant

transactions.

i) Government Grants

(i) Grants from the Government are recognised at their Fair Value where there is a reasonable

assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all the attached

conditions.

(ii) Government grant relating to purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment are included in "Other

current/ non-current liabilities" as Government Grant - Deferred Income and are credited to Profit

or loss on a straight I ine basis over the expected I ife of the related asset and presented within "Other

Operating revenue".

j) Employee Benefits

(i) During Employment benefits

(a) Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is 

recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive 

obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the 

obligation can be estimated reliably. 

(ii) Post-Employment benefits

(a) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which Company pays fixed 

contribution into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay future 

amounts. The Company has no obligation for payment to any contributions as per the relevant Act. 

(b) Defined benefit plans

The Company pays gratuity to the employees who have has completed five years of service with the 

company at the time when employee leaves the Company. The gratuity is payable as per the 

provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The gratuity liability is not ascertained as employees' 

have not completed five years of service as on 31st March, 2025.

(c) Termination Benefits 

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the 

normal retirement date or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these 

benefits. In case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are 

measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more 

than twelve months after the end of reporting period are discounted to the present value. 

k) Income Tax

lncome tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in statement of profit and

loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or in

equity. In such cases, the tax is also recognised in the other comprehensive income or in equity.

(a) Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 

to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or subsequently enacted at 

the Balance sheet date. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company: 

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.



(b) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have enacted or subsequently enacted by the end ofthe reporting period. The carrying
amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which they can be used.

The measurementof deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount ofits
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
a) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and
b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable Company.

1) Borrowing Costs
General and specific Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use are capitalised aspart of the cost of that asset till the date it is ready for its intended
use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing cost eligible for
capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the
period for which they are incurred.

m) Leases

Effective Ist April, 2019, the company adopted IND AS 116 - Leases. IFSL applied IND AS 116
using modified retrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of initial application is
recognized in retained earnings at Ist April 2019.

Accounting policy applicable from Ist April 2019

At the inception it is assessed, whether a contract is a lease or contains a lease. A contract is a lease
or contains a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, for a period of
time, in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, company
assesses whether the contract involves the use of an identified asset. Use may be specified
explicitly or implicitly.

Use should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically
distinct asset.

If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified.

Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period ofuse.

Company has the right to direct the use ofthe asset.

In cases where the usage of the asset is predetermined the right to direct the use of the asset is
determined when the company has the right to use the asset or the company designed the asset in a
way that predetermines howand for what purposeit will be used.
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Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use.

1 Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

2 Incases where the usage of the asset is predetermined the right to direct the use of the assetis
determined when the company hasthe right to use the asset or the company designedthe asset
in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

At the commencement or modification of a contract, that contains a lease component,
company allocates the consideration in the contract, to each lease component, on the basis of
its relative standalone prices. For leases of property, it is elected not to separate non-lease
components and account for the lease and non-lease componentsas a single lease component.

As a Lessee:

Company recognizes a right-of-use asset anda lease liability at the lease commencement date.

Right-of-use asset (ROU):
The right-of-use assetis initially measured at cost. Cost comprises of the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee, an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located less any lease incentives
received.

After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset applying cost model,
which is Cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses and also
adjusted for certain re-measurementsof the lease liability.

Right-of-use asset is depreciated using straight-line method from the commencement date to the end
of the lease term. If the lease transfers the ownership of the underlying asset to the companyat the
end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects company will exercise the
purchase option, ROU will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is
determined based onthe same basis as property, plant and equipment.

Lease liability:
Lease liability is initially measured at the present value of lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date. Discounting is done using the implicit interest rate in the lease, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, then using company’s incremental borrowing rate. Incremental
borrowing rate is determined based on entity’s borrowing rate adjusted for terms of the lease and
type ofthe asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments), variable lease payments that depends on an index ora rate,
initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date, amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, the exercise price under a purchase option that the
company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the
company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination
of a lease unless the companyis reasonably certain not to terminate early.

Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Lease liability is re-
measured when there is a change in the lease term, a change in its assessment of whetherit will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or a revised in-substance fixed lease payment,
a change in the amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and a change in
future lease payments arising from change in an index orrate.
Whenthe lease liability is re-measured corresponding adjustment is madeto the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zeroit
will be recorded in statementof profit and loss.



Right-of-use asset is presented as a separate category under “Non-current assets” and lease
liabilities are presented under “Financial liabilities” in the balance sheet.

Companyhaselected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases.
The lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense onastraight-line
basis over the lease term.

Lessor

At the commencement or modification of a contract, that contains a lease component, company
allocates the consideration in the contract, to each lease component, on the basis of its relative
standalone prices.

At the inception of the lease, it is determined whether it is a finance lease or an operating lease. If
the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset, then it is a financial lease, otherwiseit is an operating lease.

If the lease arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the consideration in the
contract is allocated using the principles of IND AS 115. The company tests for the impairment
losses at the year end. Payment received under operating lease is recognised as income on straight
line basis, over the lease term.

The accounting policies applicable to the companyasa lessor, in the comparative period, were not
different from IND AS 116.

n) Non- Currentassets held for sale

Non-Current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at lower of their (a.) carrying amount and (b.) Fair Value less
cost to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised when they are classified as held for
sale.

0) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company hasa present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can bereliably estimated. Provisions are measuredat the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure requiredto settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pretax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expenses.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but
their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of Company or where any present obligation cannot be
measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation
cannot be made.



INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023393

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

» : As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024(a) Equity Share Capital
No. of Eq. Shares Amount No. of Eq. Shares Amount

Balance at the beginning of the reporting 30.13.100 301.31 30,13,100 301.31period

Changes in Equity Share capital during the
39.17.030 391.70 ; :year

Balanceat the endof the reporting period 69,30,130 693.01 30,13,100 301,31

(b) Other Equity

Reserve for equity SeeutiticsParticulars instruments
Preciant Retained Earning Total

through OCI
Balanceat 1st April, 2023 175.97 - 383.67 559.64
Profit for the year - - 60.94 60.94
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 305.54 - - 305.54
Reclassification of loss on Equity Instruments
classified through OCI to Retained earning on (561.76) - 561.76 -eventof actual sales

Reversal of DTA on above reclassification 46.88 ~ (25.19) 21.68
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (209.34) - 597.51 388.17
Balance at 31st March, 2024 (33.37) - 981.18 947.81
Profit for the year - - 285.35 285.35
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 109.74 - - 109.74
Reclassification of profit on Equity Instruments
classified through OCI to Retained earning on (37.39) - 37.39 -event of actual sales
Add / (Less) : Premium received on Issue of]
Right shares @ 20 Rsper share eee) meal
Add / (Less) : Right Issue expenses (10.68) (10.68)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 72.36 - 322.73 395.09
Balance at 31st March, 2025 38.99 772.72 1303.91 2115.62

As per our report of even date
For, B. T. VORA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 123652W

C.“A. SHETH
Partner
Membership No.180506
UDIN : 25180506BMLXRK8686

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

adip Sandhir
Managing Director &
DIN : 06946411

oO.»y,
;croLEE)ee

ASO.
Jaini Jain

Company Secretary
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 29th May, 2025

DIN : 00005646
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INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023393

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2025
Amount in Rs. LakhsParticulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 20243 |Non-Current Investment

(a) Investments designated through OCI
Investment in Equity Instrument - Quoted 398.86 103.88

Total 398.86 103.88

Details of Non Current Investments
(a)|Investments designated through OCI As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Quoted No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
1 {Gala Global Products Ltd. 21,000 0.74 21,000 0.62
2 |Innovana Thinklabs Ltd 30,000 119.99 15,000 81.00
3 |Kids Medical Systems Ltd. 1,28,000 10.14 1,28,000 10.14
4 |Rachana Infrastructure Industries Ltd 4,000 1.36 4,000 1.61
5 {Raw Edge Industrial Solutions Ltd. 17,280 6.05 17,280 S22
6 |Shubham Polyspin Ltd 28,600 6.52 28.600 5:29
7 {NTPC Limited 1 0.00 - -8 |SRM Contractors Limited 78,261 254.07 - -

Total} 3,07,142 398.86 2,13,880 103.88

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
3 |Current Investment

(a) Investments designated through FVTPL
Investment in Mutual Fund Instrument - Quoted 312.08 =

Total 312.08 =

Details of Current Investments
(a)| Investments designated through FVTPL As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
|__| Quoted No. of Units Amount No. of Units Amount| |Bajaj Finserv Flexi Cap Fund — Regular Plan — Growth 8,01,049 104.07 - -2 {Aditya Birla Sun Life Multi-Cap Fund — Regular Plan — Growth 5,81,028 103.83 - .3 [ICICI Prudential Thematic Advantage Fund (FOF) — Regular Plan — Growth 50,229 104.18 - -

Total] 14,32,307 312.08 ~ ~

Amount in Rs. Lakhs
4 |Loans

Non-current
a. Loans to Other
- Secured, considered good
- Unsecured, considered good - -
- Doubtful - 29.88

- 29.88
Less : Advances written off (Impairment Loss) - (29.88)

Current
a. Loans to Others
- Secured, considered good
- Unsecured, considered good 938.81 992.24
- Doubtful - 41.48

938.81 1033.73
Less : Allowance for Excepted Credit Loss during the year (20.71) :Add: Advances Written off being Credit Impaired utilised from ECL 18.82 “

936.92 1033.73

Total 936.92 1033.73
Note :

Disclosures as per schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015:
i Loans & Advances to others under current includes Rs. 14.29 lacs as at 31st March 2025 (Previous Year as at 31st March 2024 - Rs. 15.78 lacs)

due from a company/Individual in which one of director/KMP is director / member/ Relative of KMP.
ii None of the loanee have made investmentin share of the company.

Amount in Rs. Lakhs
5 |Other non-current assets

2.40 2.40
Total 2.40 2.40



INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023393

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2025
Amount in Rs. Lakhs6

|
Trade Receivable
Secured and considered good - -Unsecured and considered good 2.53 24.45

Total 2.53 24.45

Ageing of Sundry Debtors
As at 31st March 2025

Particulars Se 2,2 one :
1-2 years 2-3 years ra ?

Total
Undisputed
Considered good 2.04 0.50 - - - 2.54
Considered doubtful - - . - 0.63 0.63
Disputed

-Considered good
-Considered doubtful
-Less : Allowance for Excepted Credit Loss (0.42) (2.01) (26.65) (0.67) (0.63) (30.38)Add : Bad Debts Written off utilised from ECL 0.41 2.00 26.65 0.67 - 29.74

Total 2.04 0.50 - - - 2.53

Particulars

U

Considered doubtful

Considered
Considered
Unbilled Amount
Total
Note:

Less than 6
months

0.24

0.24

6 month to 1

years

23.54

23.54 0.67

Refer Note No - 31 for information about Credit Risk and Market Risk of Trade Receivables.

2-3 years

Trade Receivables Others Includes Rs. Nil/- as at 31st March 2025 (Previous Year as at 31st March 2024 Rs. Nil/-

More than 3
As at 31st March 2024

Total

24.45

24.45

) due from Associates party.

Amount in Rs. Lakhs7 |Cash and Bank Balances
a. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash
Cash on hand 3.07 0.98
Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 126.88 20.09

129.95 21.07b. Other Bank Balances
ICICI Bank Fixed Deposit (Maturity on demand) 806.07 130.00

806.07 130.00
Total 936.01 151.07

Amount in Rs. Lakhs8

|Other
current

Assets
Accrued Interest on Term Deposit 5.63 0.40Advance givento creditors 29.06 3.69
Advance given for Purchase of Capital Assets 318.14 3
Prepaid Expenses 4.16 6.95Balance with Govt. Authorities 10.63 0.94

Total 367.61 11.98

Amount in Rs, Lakhs9 |Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale
i) |Office Building - Gross Block 2.84 2.84

ii)} Furniture & Fixtures - Gross Block 0.53 0.53
Less: Accumulated depreciation (1.79) (1.79)

Total 1.58 1.58

AS -105,@o0r details refer Note No. 33
Ahmedabad Ys

the FY 2022-23 Office Building and Furniture & Fixtures at Paldi Area are retired from active use from 01-04-2022 and therefore,Non-Current Asset held for sale and valued at carrying value which is assumed to be less than fair value as in accordance with IND



INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1994PL.C023393

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2025
Amount in Rs, Lakhs10 Share Capital

Equity Share Capital
Authorised Share capital:80,00,000 (Previous year 80,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each 800.00 800.00

Issued, subscribed & paid up:
69,30, 130 (Previous year 30,13,100) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each, fully paid up 693.01 301.31

Total 693.01 301.31
Notes:
All the equity shares carry equal rights and obligation including for dividend and with respect to voting.

i The Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding as at the year endis set as below:
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024Particular Number of Number of

shares Amount
shares Amount

Equity sharesat the beginning of the year 30,13,100 301.31 30.13,100 301.31Add: Equity Shares issued during the year 39,17,030 391.70 - -Equity shares at the end of the year 69,30,130 693.01 30,13,100 301.31

The details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares of the Company as at yearendis as below:Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 Asat 31st March, 2024Pradeep Sandhir 9.71,000 14.01% 5,71,000 18.95%Mona Sandhir 3,47,635 5.02% 1,51,146 5.02%

Vv

vi

iy The Company does not have any promoters as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, disclosure under promoter shareholding is notapplicable.
The companyis neither Holding Company nor a subsidiary of any other company.
During preceding 5 years, neither any shares have been allotted for consideration other than cash, bonus shares nor any shares have been boughtback.
During the year, company has made rights issue of 39,17,030 equity shares at %30 per share fully paid up of face value 210 per share which is ex-date on 17th January, 2025 and allotted 10th February, 2025 which shall rank pari passu to existing equity shares. The total amount raised was211,75,10,900/- of which %3,91,70,300/- is allocated to Equity Share Capital and remaining %7,83,40,600/- is credited to Securities Premium
Account. The rights issue was made for various purpose as given in Offer Document and was over subscribed by the existing shareholders. This
issue was in compliance with the provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Ind AS standards.

Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Reserve for equity instruments

Other Equity through other comprehensive
income

Securities Retained
: . TotalPremium earnings

Reserves and Surplus
Balances as on Ist April, 2023 175.97 = 383.67 559.64
Add / (Less) : Net fair value gain on investments in
equity instruments at FVTOCI
Less : Income tax on net fair value gain on
investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
Add / (Less) : Reclassification of loss/(profit) on
Equity shares classified through OCI to Retained (561.76) - 561.76 :
earning on eventof actual sales
Add / (Less) : Reversal of DTA on actual Equity

335.31 . . 335.31

(29.76) - . (29.76)

: 46.88 - (25.19) 21.68instruments sold
Add : Net profit / (loss) after tax from continuing

‘ . 60.94 60.94operations

Balancesas on 31st March, 2024 (33.37) a 981.18 947.81

Add / (Less) : Net fair value gain on investments in
120.56 120.56equity instruments at FVYTOCI

Less : Income tax on net fair value gain on (10.81) (10.81)investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
Add / (Less) : Reclassification of gain on Equity
shares classified through OCI to Retained earning (37.39) 37.39 a
on event of actual sales
Add / (Less) : Premium received on Isse of Right

a 783.41es @ 20 Rs'per share 783.41

(10.68) (10.68)

P. . 285.35 285.35

38.99 772.72 1303.91 2115.62



INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023393

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2025
Nature and Purpose of Reserve:

Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income
This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value through othercomprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to retained earnings when those assets have been disposed off.
Retained earnings
The sameis created out of profits over the years and shall be utilised as per the provisions of the Act.
Securities Premium
The securities premium is the reserve created from the excess amount received above the face value of the equity shares issued during the yearinform of rights issue.

Amount in Rs. Lakhs12)Trade Payable
Due To Other than Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises 69.13 ATotal 69.13 7.12

of sundry creditors
As at 31

Less than I More than 3Particulars
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
vents Total

U
MSME :
Other * 69.13

MSME
Other
Unbilled Amount
Total 69.13 69.13

As at 31st M 2024
Less than 1 More than 3Particulars 1-2 years 2-3 years Total

U
MSME
Other *

MSME
Other
Unbilled Amount
Total 7.12 7.12

i On the basis of the information available with the Company and intimations received from suppliers (Trade Payable and Other Payables), there areno dues payable as on 31st March, 2025 (31st March, 2024 : Nil) to Suppliers / Service providers covered under Micro, Small, Medium EnterprisesDevelopmentAct, 2006. In viewofthis information required to be disclosed w/s. 22 of the said Act is not given.

ii *Trade Payables for others includes Rs. Nil as at 31st March 2025 (Previous Year as at 31st March 2024 Rs. 2,61,957/-) due to KMP for UnpaidRemuneration & Unpaid reimbursement expenses with KMPs

Amount in Rs. Lakhs13|}Current Loans
Loans repayable on Demand - Unsecured
- From Inter Corporate Parties 55.85

Total 55.85
=Above fixed interest bearing loan and is repayable on demand, therefore no terms of repayment is determined.

Amount in Rs. Lakhs14| Other current liabilities
Outstanding Liabilities chew 2.49Advances from customers 36.39 6.15Statutory Liabilities 19.79 5.55

Total 59.76 14.18

Amount in Rs. Lakhs15|Current year tax/(Asset) (Net)
ision for Income Tax 106.71 95.77KLEE

P| Advance DS Receivables (123.10) (28.60)f Ahmedabad \*\ Total (16.39) 67.16FR.NO a
123652W /=,

® SS
RED ACCOS



INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023393

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2025
16 Tax Expenses
(a) Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss Amount in Rs, Lakhs

3 For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31stSees March, 2025 March, 2024Current Income Tax 106.71 95.77
Excess provision of Income Tax in respect of Earlier years - -
Deferred Income Tax Liability / (Asset), net

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 0.35 0.08
Mutual Fund Investment valued at FVTPL 1.57 -
Change in recognised deductible temporary differences (0.64) -

Deferred Tax Expense . 1.29 0.08
Total Tax Expense for the year 108.00 95.85

(b) Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income Amount in Rs, Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 3ist March, 2025 3ist March, 2024
Before tax Tax Lexpease)

Netof tax Before tax Een texpeaey Netof taxbenefit benefit
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

pay: insrumments.. designated eoug Wathen) ia (10.81) 109.74 335.31 (29.76) 305.54comprehensive income
Total 120.56 (10.81) 109.74 335.31 (29.76) 305.54

(c) Reconciliation of Tax Expense Amount in Rs. Lakhs
: For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31strerticsiars

March, 2025 March, 2024
Profit Before Tax 393.34 156.75
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 99.00 39.45
Non-Deductible Tax Expenses
Depreciation 0.46 0.16
Interest on Income Tax & TDS late payment 175 0.38
Exps Disallowed under Section 37 0.88 0.00
Allowable Tax Expenses
Depreciation (0.81) (0.21)
Gain/Loss on MF (FVTPL) (3.04) -
Items subject to differential tax rate
Short term Capital Gain - EQS as per IT 8.49 -
Long Term Capital Gain on EQS as per IT - 55.98

Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets) :-
Fair value of financial Instrument - Mutual Funds FVTPL 1.57 =
Difference in carrying value of PPE 0.35 0.05
Provisions of ECL (0.64) -Tax expense 108.00 95.81
Effective Tax Rate 27.46% 61.12%

(d) Movement in Deferred Tax Balances Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Net Balance as at 31st March, 2025

netenoray
Net DeferredParticniars Net Balance Ist Reversal Recognised|Recognised in|Deferred Tax|Deferred Tax Tax Liability /April, 2024 Retained Profit or Loss oc! Liability Asset

(Assets)Earning
Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liability
Property, Plant and Equipment 0.08 - 0.35 - 0.43 - 0.43
Investments - Equity Shares (3.87) - - 10.81 6.94 - 6.94
Investments - Mutual Funds - - 1:57 - 1.57 - 1.57
Provisions of ECL : : (0.64) : - (0.64) (0.64)Net Deferred Tax (3.79) : 1.29 10.81 8.94 (0.64) 8.31

Net Balance as at 31st March, 2024

Net Balance Ist ae Recognised|Recognised in| Deferred Tax|Deferred Tax|&t Deferred* e alance Is eversa ecognise ecognised in eterre ax eterre ax PeeryParticulars
April, 2023 Retained Profitor Loss OCI

Liability Asset tes tesvily:
Earning (Assets)

err ax (Asset)/Liability
‘Property, Plant and Equipment 0.03 * 0.05 5 0.08 “ 0.08PeePt Shares (11.95) (21.68) - 29.76 - (3.87) (3.87)Nee Tax (Asset) / (11.92) (21.68) 0.05 29.76 0.08 (3.87) (3.79)mw

123662W /=
AN



INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC023393

Notes forming part of Statement of Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2025
Amount in Rs. Lakhs

ee Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024

17 |Revenue from Operations
Financial Consultancy Services (net) 740.81 306.65

Total 740.81 306.65
18 |Other Income

Interest Income 93.52 40.60
Dividend Income on Equity Shares 0.00 0.08
Gain/(Loss) Fair Valuation on Mutual Fund (FVTPL) 12.09 -
Other Income 4.71 0.35

Total 110.32 41.03
19 |Employee Benefits Expenses

Salary, Bonus & Ex Gratia 78.74 41.23
Directors Remuneration 33.00 10.50
Stipend Exps - 0.94
Staff Welfare Exps 11.26 4.74

Total 122.99 57.41
20 |Finance Costs

Interest Expenses 12.30 1.51
Bank Charges 0.00 0.00

Total 12.30 1.51

21 |Other Expenses
Advertisement 1.54 LAT
Auditors Remuneration 1.80 1.50
Directors' Sitting Fees LSS 1.20
Electricity Expenses 0.74 0.77
Rent for Office (Refer Note No. 31) 7.42 6.84
Listing Fees 3.25 3.30
Professional & Consultancy Fees for IPO Services Exps 230.33 44.40
Impairment on Financial Assets as per ECL 51.09 -
Account Writing Charges 0.99 1.20
Professional Charges* 3.54 1.10
Travelling Expenses 4.60 3.31
Brokerage & Commission Exps - 30.60
Business Promotion Exps 0.42 1.04
Advances written off . 29.88
Domain, Mail, Web Hosting & Site Maintenance 1.77 1.19
Administrative & General Expenses 11.62 3.87

Total 320.66 131.38
Note :

i. Payment to Auditors : (exclusive of GST)
Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024

i) For Audit Fees 1.80 1.50
ii) *For Taxation services 0.45 0.45
iii) *For Other Services (included in Professional Charges) 0.79 0.36

Total Rs: 3.04 2.31
22 |Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Equity Instruments designated through OCI 120.56 335.31

iD Total 120.56 335.31
499R EOIN1CQ0I2VV



INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L65910G51994PLC023393

Notes forming part of Statement of Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2025
Corresponding figures for previous year presented have been regrouped, where necessary, to confirm to the current period’s
classification.

24 Figures have been rounded off to nearest of rupee and reflected in lakhs with two decimals. Amount shown as 0.00 represents amount
below 500 (Rupees Five Hundred).

25 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
A_ Not provided for in the accounts

Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024
Counter Guarantee Given to Banks NIL NIL
Claims not acknowledged as debt NIL NIL
Disputed demand of Income Tax AY 2018-19 under Appeal 149.08 149.08

B Capital Commitment
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided (net of advances) of Rs. Nil
(Previous year: Nil as at 31st March, 2024 Rs. Nil).

26 Disclosures pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard -19 “ Employee Benefits”:
A Defined Contribution Plan:

The company has recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account in respect of defined contribution plan — Provident
Fund ofRs. Nil/- (Previous year Rs. Nil /-) administered by the Government. Provident fund is not payable by the company as
per Provident Fund Act during the year on account of employees not exceeding 10 numbers.

B Defined benefit plan and long term employment benefit
General Description:

- Gratuity (Defined Benefit Plan):
The provisions of gratuity payable under the payment of gratuity Act is not applicable to the company during the year under
audit.

- Leave Wages:
The leave wagesare payableto all eligible employees at the rate of daily salary/wages for each day of accumulated leave and
are paid during the financial year itself. Therefore no liability is accrued at the end of the financial year for leave benefits as per
practice followed by the company year to year.

27 Related Party Disclosure. :-
Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” are given below.

A_Key Management Personnel (KMP)
1 |Mr. Pradeep Sandhir Managing Director & CFO
2 |Mr. Mayur Parikh Director
3 |Ms. Jaini Jain Company Secretary
4 {Raghav Jobanputra Independent Director
5 {Rutu Milind Sanghvi Independent Director
6 |Monil Kamleshkumar Shah Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f. 29.08.2024)
B_ Related Parties
| |Beeline Broking Limited
2 |Mona Broking LLP
3 |Ripal Gevariya

C_ Transactions with KMP & Related parties : (Amountin Rs. Lakhs)
SN Nature of Transactions aeeeeeee sees

: Related Parties KMP Related Parties KMP
| |Remuneration Paid - 49.25 - 22:75
2 {Reimbursement of Expenses - 9.10 . 3.19
3 {Interest Income 0.23 1.18 4.21 LU
4 |Loan & Advances Given , . - 90.00 12.00
5 {Directors Sitting Fees LeoBI < 1.55 1.20

Balance Outstanding S Mzcor7 NG
a.]Loan & Advances “of ONS 5 - 14.29 2.67 13:01
b.|Sundry Creditors for Expenses a Vi} - - - 2.62

Orme”



D_ Material Transactions with KMP & Related parties : (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
S.N.|Nameof Related Party/ KMP Nature of Transaction 2024-2025 2023-2024

| |Mr. Pradeep Sandhir Remuneration 18.00 10.50
2 |Mr. Mayur Parikh Remuneration 15.00 0.00
3 |Ms. Jaini Jain Remuneration & Bonus 16.25 12.25
4 |Ms. Jaini Jain Loan & Advances given - 12.00
5 |Ms. Jaini Jain Interest Income 1.18 1.11
6 |Mr. Raghav Jobanputra Directors Sitting Fees 0.60 0.60
7 |Mrs. Rutu Milind Sanghvi Directors Sitting Fees 0.60 0.60
8 |Mr. Monil Kamleshkumar Shah Directors Sitting Fees 0.35 -
9 |Ripal Gevariya Interest Income 0.16 1.78
10 |Ripal Gevariya Loan & Advances given : 90.00
11 |Ripal Gevariya oanee dead 1.94 90.00
12 |Beeline Broking Limited Interest Income 0.07 2.43
13 |Beeline Broking Limited noah “ee peceivert

0.96 74.10

28 Segment Reporting:

Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments” are given below.
As per the Management Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) for purpose of resource allocation and assessment and the
segment performance focus on only one major operating division - 'Merchant Banking Division’ during the current year. Since the
company has only one segment, there is no separate reportable segment as required under Ind AS 108.

The revenue from operation based on geographical areasare as below : (Amountin Rs. Lakhs)
Geographical area 2024-2025 2023-2024
Within India 740.81 306.65
Outside India - -
Total 740.81 306.65

29 Particulars of Earnings Per Share:
The basic and diluted earnings per share have been computed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 33 —
Earnings Per Share. The details are as follows:

Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024
Net Profit attributable to Share Holders (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 285.35 60.94
Number of Weighted Equity Shares * 42,13,681 36,75,982
Nominal value of share 10 10
Original Earnings per share 6.772 2.023
Restated Earnings per share # 6.772 1.658

Note: The earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2024 has been restated retrospectively due to a rights issue made in lastquarter of year, which contained a bonus element asper the requirements of Ind AS 33.

During the year, the Company madea rights issue of 39,17,030 equity shares at $30 per share. The market price immediately prior tothe issue was 744.27. The issue contains a bonus element as the issue price was lower than the market price.
Accordingly, in compliance with Ind AS 33 — Earnings Per Share, the earnings per sharefor all prior periods presented have been
adjusted retrospectively using an adjustment factor of 1.22 which is calculated as Market Price before Rights Issue/Theoretical Ex
Rights Price because Market Price before Ex-Date is more than TERP. This adjustment ensures comparability acrossall periods.
*Calculation of Adjusted Number of Weighted Equity Shares due to Rights Issue allotted on 10th February, 2025

Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024
No. of shares Pre-Rights Issue 30,13,100 30,13,100
Adjusted Pre-Rights Shares after adjustment factor of 1.22 36,75,982 36,75,982
Weighted Average shares of Rights Issue 39,17,030*50/365 days 5,37,699 -q NORA

Total Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 42,13,681 36,75,982

mpany does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently the basic and dilutive earning per share
pany remain the same.



30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Leases in which the company is a Lessee
Office premises

The Company hasleasing arrangements forits registered office. Non-cancellable period for this leasing arrangementsis less than 12
months and the Company elected to apply the recognition exemption for short term leases to this lease. The lease amount is charged
as rent. The Total lease payments accounted for the year ended March 31, 2025 is Rs. 7.42 lakhs (previous year Rs. 6.84 lakhs).

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
A. Accounting classification and Fair Values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, including their levels
in the Fair Value hierarchy. It does not include Fair Value information for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities not measured at
Fair Value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of Fair Value.

(Amount in Rs. lakhs)
Carrying Amount Fair Value

March 31, 2025 aaahTR: eaeecs ee Total Level 1 Level 3

Financial

_—_
Assets measured at

amortised Cost:-
Non - Current Investments - 398.86 - 398.86 398.86 -
Current Investments 312.08 - 312.08 312.08
Trade Receivables 23 2:53 - -
Loans :-
Current 938.81 938.81 - -
Less: ECL Provisions (1.89) (1.89)
Cash and cash equivalents 129.95 129.95 - -
Total Financial Assets 312.08 398.86 1069.40 1780.34 710.94 -
Financial Liabilities measured at
amortised Cost:-
Borrowings- current 55.85 55.85 - 0.00
Trade payables - current 69.13 69.13 - -
Total Financial Liabilities - - 124.98 124.98 - 0.00

Carrying Amount Fair Value
March 31, 2024 aiccceee enue Eee Total Level I Level 3

Financial_—_Assets measured at
amortised cost:-
Non - Current Investments - 103.88 - 103.88 103.88 -Trade and Other Receivables - - 24.45 24.45 - *
Loans :-
Current - - 1033.73 1033.73 - -Cash and cash equivalents - - 21.07 21.07 - -
Total Financial Assets - 103.88 1079.25 1183.13 103.88 -Financial Liabilities measured at
amortised Cost:-
Trade payables- current TAZ 7.12 . .Total Financial Liabilities - - 7.12 7.12 - -
“(1) Fair Value of financial Assets and Li

separately.
Types of inputs are as under:

Input Level I : (Directly Observable) w
Equity Security on Security Exchanges.

abilities are measured at Amortized cost is not materially different from the Amortized cost. Furthersimpact oftime value of moneyis not Significant for the financial instrument classified as current. Accordingly fair value has not been disclosed

hich includes quoted prices in active markets for identical assets such as quoted price for an

Input LevelII : (Indirectly Observable) which includes prices in active markets for similar assets such as quoted price for similar
assets in active markets, valuation multiple derived from prices in observed transactions involving similar businesses etc.

< \ Tiptite evel III : (Unobservable) which includes management's own assumptions for arriving at a fair value such as projected cash
ed to value a business etc.

Jsetvable inputs used.
ing tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant



Financial instruments measured at fair value
Type Valuation technique
Mutual Fund Valuation Based on NAV rates listed on NSE/BSE stock exchange.
Equity Valuation Based on exchange rates listed on NSE/BSE stock exchange.
Financial Risk Management:-
The Company hasexposureto the following risks arising from financial instruments:
* Credit Risk ;

« Liquidity Risk ; and
= Market Risk

- Currency Risk
- Interest Rate Risk
- Equity Risk

Risk Management framework
The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversightof the Company’s risk managementframework. The Company manages market risk through a treasury department, which evaluates and exercises independentcontrolover the entire process of market risk management. The treasury department recommendsrisk management objectives and policies,which are approved by Board of Directors. The activities of this department include management of cash resources, borrowingstrategies, and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies,
The Company’s Risk Management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriaterisk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk Management policies and systems are reviewed regularly toreflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, throughits training and management standards and
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles andobligations.
The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s Risk Management policies andprocedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management frameworkin relation to the risks faced by the Company. The AuditCommittee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of riskmanagement controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.
Credit Risk
Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet itscontractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers, investments in debt securities andloans.
Credit Risk also arises from cash held with banks, credit exposureto clients, loans and advances given. The maximum exposure tocredit risk is equal to the carrying value ofthe financial assets. The company assesses the credit quality of counter parties taking intoaccount their financial position, past experience and other factors.
Other Financial Assets
The Company maintains its Cash and Cash equivalents and Bank deposits with banks having good reputation, good past track record
and high quality credit rating and also reviews their credit-worthiness on an on-going basis.
All loans, in the opinion of management which are not recoverable are written off. The Company maywrite off financial assets thatare still subject to enforcement activity. The Company still seeks to recover amounts it is legally owed in full, but which have beenwritten off due to no reasonable expectation of full recovery. The impairmentfor financial assets are based on assumptions about riskof default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to theimpairment calculation, based on the C ompany’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at theend of each balance sheet date.
Further, the movement on credit loss allowance on current loans and advances is as follow:
Particulars 3ist March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year - a
Change during the year 20.71 -Bad debts written off (18.82) -Balance at the end of the year 1.89 7
Belowis the information about credit risk e of the Com the ion matrix -
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Trade Receivables
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics ofthe customer, including the default risk of the industry has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed throughcredit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Companygrants credit terms in the normal course of business.
The maximum exposure to Credit Risk for Trade Receivables by geographic region wasas follows: (Amountin Rs. lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Domestic 2:53 24.45
Outside India - USA

- -
Total 2.53 24.45

Further, the movement on credit loss allowance on trade receivable balance is as follow:
Particulars 3ist March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year . z

Change during the year 30.38 -
Bad debts written off (29.74) =

Balance at the end of the year 0.64 =

Belowis the information about credit risk exposure ofthe Company’s trade receivables using the provision matrix - (Amountin Rs. lakhs)Particulars 0- 180 Days More than 180 Days TotalAs at March 31, 2025
Total gross carrying amount 2.45 30.45 32.91
Expected credit loss (0.42) (29.96) (30.38)
Net carrying 2.04 0.50 2.53

As at March 31, 2024
Total gross carrying amount 24.45 = 24.45
Expected credit loss - = =
Net carrying 24.45 - 24.45

The impairment for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates, The Company usesjudgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairmentcalculation, based on the Company’s pasthistory,existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each balance sheet date. The allowances for expectedcredit loss for year ended March 31, 2025is Rs 2.53 lakhs and for year ended March 31, 2024 was NIL as any impairmentorcreditloss was directly written off.

ii Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its FinancialLiabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure,as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meetits liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressedconditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Exposure to Liquidity Risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross andundiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and excludethe impact of netting agreements.

Contractual Cash FlowsNon-Derivyative Financial Liabilities Carrying Amount Carrying Amount
3st March, 2025 31st March, 2024Unsecured Loans 55.85 -

Trade and Other Payables 69.13 TAZ



iii Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect theCompany’s income or the value ofits holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitivefinancial instruments including foreign currency receivables, Investments and short term debt. We are exposed to market riskprimarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the value of our investments. Thus, our exposure to market risk is
a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currency. The objective ofmarket risk management is to avoid excessive exposure in our foreign currency revenues andcosts.

a) Currency Risk
The company does not haveany foreign currency exposures. Therefore risk due to currency fluctuation do notarise.

b) Interest Rate Risk
Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future Cash Flows ofa financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes inmarket interest rates.

Exposureto Interest Rate Risk
The Company has taken unsecured loan bearing Fixed Interest rates andis repayable on demand, therefore company does not have
any risk in case of change in market risk of Interest rates. Therefore, sensitivity to Interest Rate is not calculated. The loans grantedby the companyis with fixed interest rate.

c) Equity Risk

Equity Price Risk is related to the changein market reference price of the investments in equity securities. The fair value of some ofthe Company’s investments in Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income & FVTPL securities exposes the Company to equityprice risks. In general, these securities are not held for trading purposes. These investments are subject to changes in the market priceof securities. The fair value of equity securities as of March 31, 2025 was Rs. 398.86 lakhs [March 31, 2024- Rs. 103.88 lakhs]. ASensex standard deviation of 5% [FY 2023-24 - 5%] would result in change in equity prices of securities held as of March 31, 2024by Rs. 19.943 lakhs [ FY 2023-24 - Rs. 5.194 lakhs]
d) Mutual Fund Risk

Mutual Fund NAV Risk is related to the change in market reference NAV ofthe investments in mutual funds. The fair value of someof the Company’s investments in Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income & FVTPL funds exposes the Company to NAVprice risks. In general, these funds are not held for trading purposes. These investments are subject to changes in the market NAV ofunits of Mutual Funds. The fair value of units of mutual funds as of March 3 1, 2025 was Rs. 312.08 lakhs [March 31, 2024- Rs. Nil].A Sensex standard deviation of 5% [FY 2023-24- 0%] would result in change in NAV prices of units held as of March 31, 2025 byRs. 15.604 lakhs [ FY 2023-24 - Rs. Nil ]

32 Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustainfuture development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinaryshareholders.
The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is definedas total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and obligations under finance leases, less cash and cashequivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

(Amount in Rs. lakhs)Particulars 3ist March, 2025 31st March, 2024Total Interest bearing liabilities 55.85 -Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 936.01 151.07
Adjusted Net Debt (880.17) (151.07)Total Equity 2808.64 1249.12
Adjusted equity 2808.64 1249.12
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio Nul Nul

33 Non Current Asset Held for Sale

As per Ind AS - 105, An entity shall classify a non-current asset (or disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying amount will berecovered principally throughasale transaction rather than through continuing use. Further one of conditions to classify is that thesale should be complete within 12 months from classification. There are some exception to such condition and extension is providedbeyond one year to complete the sale. During previous year FY 2022-23, the management has decided tosell the asset which wasart of PPE earlier and classified the Building & Furniture located at 603, Harekrishna Complex, Paldi, Ahmedabad on 01.04.2022
q ha ind arrying value of Rs. 1.58 lacs. During the year, management has made efforts to actively market the property and there is no¢. in\plan to sale the asset. As the property is vacant for long duration of time, the local taxes and other regulatory requirementser process. There is change in managementduring FY 2022-23, therefore, management is actively trying to resolve theayliest. Managementis already in talks with one of the buyer regarding the sale and is expected to complete soon.



34 Details of Loan given, Investment made and Guarantee given covered u/s 186(4) of the Companies Act.
a) Loans givento related parties during the year (Amountin Rs. lakhs)

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024Name of Company/Firm Loan given Outstanding Loan given Outstanding
during the year Balance during the year Balance|_|Beeline Broking Limited - . - 2.672_|Mona Broking LLP

- - - -3_|Ripal Gevariya - - 90.00 -

b) There are no investments made other than disclosed in Note 3.
c) There are no guarantees given by the company during the year.

35 Other Amendments with respect to Schedule III
1 The company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company forholding any Benami property.
2 The companyis not declared as wilful defaulter by any bankor financial Institution or other lender.
3 There is no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act,2013.
4 The company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed asincome during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevantprovisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

5 The Company did not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560of Companies Act, 1956 during the year.
6 The company have not traded or invested in Crypto currencyor Virtual Currency during the year.
7 The company does nothaveany charges orsatisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
8 The company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfof the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
9 The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with theunderstanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons orentities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of thecompany (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

36 Approval of the Financial Statements
The Financial Statements of the Company has been approved in the board meeting held on 29th May, 2025

37 Ratios

As at As at
R fiNo. Particulars Numerator|Denominator Basis March 31, March 31, % Variance eon oe

2025 2024 penne
: Current Current

‘a) |Current Ratio
Ateale Liabilities times 13.92 13.80 0.84%

A new unsecuredb) |Debt-Equity Ratio Debt Equity times 0.02 0.00 100.00%|loan is borrowed
by the company.

: Earnings
A new unsecuredc)

Devt Seovige
2 available for|Debt Service times TAT 0.00 100.00%|loan is borrowedCoverage Ratio

3Debt Service by the company.

Decrease is due
to Increase in

: Average
Equitro quityih ee UEDNNY,|“NCE DONE tesholdais % 19.47% 35.98% -45.88%|shareholders0 after tax :Equity funds due to

rights issue made
during the year.



3 Inventory Cost of Average
Turnover Ratio GoodsSold Inventory

stats
Averagef) [Receivables Net Sales eo

; ReceivablesTurnover Ratio

)
Trade Payables Net Average8 Turnover Ratio Purchases Payables

Net Capital Workingy Turnover Ratio ae Capital

i) |Net Profit Ratio|Net Income Net Sales

Earnings|Total Equity +
.. |Return on Capital before Borrowings -i) Employed Interest &|Deferred Tax

Taxes assets

ome AverageReturn on generated 8
k)

3 InvestedInvestments from invested :funds in FDfunds

times

days

days

times

%

%

%

NA NA NA

Increase in days
in receivablesis6.65 27.59 -75.91% due to recent

increase in
turnover.

NA NA NA

0.31 0.27 14.65%

Decrease is
mainly due to

changes in other
53.33% 119.51% -55.37% comprehensive

income due to
equity

instruments

14.16% 12.71% 11.43%

2.46% 2.98% 17.40%

1) Total Debt represents Current Borrowings + Non Current Borrowings,if any2) Earnings available for debt service represents Profit Before Tax + Interest on Debt + Depreciation
principal repayment of non-current borrowings + Current maturity of>) Jease liabilities,

Debt Service represents Interest on Debt + Scheduled

4) Capital Employed represents Total Equity + Borrowings - Deferred Tax assets.
5) Income generated from invested funds represents Fixed deposits Interest Income.
6) Average Invested funds in Fixed deposits represents Average Fixed deposits.

For, B. T. VORA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. ae TORG .

Ahmedabad
Y
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Partner
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Ahmedabad, 29th May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Boardof Directors

ayur Parikh
Director
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Jaini Jain
Company Secretary

Ahmedabad, 29th May, 2025
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